







#### Darin Jensen & Molly Roy, Editors

Production Kaitlin Jaffe Querido Galdo D Russell Wagner Emily Busch M C Abbott Elliot Waring Temra Costa



## contents

7 Introduction & Guerrilla Cartography

#### 11 FOOD: PRODUCTION

- **13** Harvesting The World
- **15** Foodscapes: Agricultural Landscapes of the World
- 17 Aroids: The World's Oldest Food Crop
- **19** The World According to Chile Peppers
- 21 The Grain Necessities
- 23 A Landcape of Specialization
- **25** The American Beershed
- 27 Fungus AmongUS: Mushroom Farms in the USA
- **29** Commodity Agriculture and Subsidies
- **31** Wealth and Agricultural Subsidies in the European Union
- **33** Protecting Food Specialities in the EU
- **35** Made in the Shade: Bird Friendly Coffee
- **37** *Oenocarpus bataua*: The Original Amazonian Superfood
- **39** California's Growing Organic Farm Movement
- **41** Maryland Meat Maps
- **43** Texas Seafood Landings
- 45 The Garden City: Los Angeles, 1940
- 46 Potential Rooftop Farming in New York City
- **47** Food Production in New York City
- **49** Compost Green Map of Manhattan: Worms in the Green Apple
- **51** Toronto's Eco Schools: From Food Waste to Food Gardens

#### 53 FOOD: DISTRIBUTION

- **55** Food in Flux: The World of Imports
- 57 Global Almond Trade and California
- 59 A Tomato's European Tour
- **61** The Distance Your Food Will Go to Be Eaten: A Food Mile Comparison
- 63 A Geography of Illinois Wheat
- **64** Fresh Catch: Community Supported Fishery in Massachusetts
- **65** Farm to Table: Community Supported Agriculture in Massachusetts
- **67** Food Labels: Branding Place of Origin
- 69 Berkeley's Farmers' Markets
- 70 Fallen Fruit

#### 73 FOOD: SECURITY

- **75** Global Imbalance of the Availability of Nutritious Food
- 77 Land For Sale: The New Trend of Commercial Pressures on Land in Sub-Saharan Africa
- **79** Threats to Indigenous Food Traditions in North America
- **81** Food Insecurity & Indigenous Communities in Canada's North
- 83 Canadian Food Networks: Propagating the Food Movement
- **85** Which Came First, Food Policy or Food Hub?
- **87** Working For Justice Along the Food Chain

- 89 Farmers Markets: Accessible to All?
- **91** The Rise of Foodbanks in England
- 93 Securing Food and Frontiers in Okinawa, Japan
- **95** Collecting Food Surplus in Northeastern Italy
- 96 Another Pampa is Possible!!!
- **99** Regional Food Resilience: Mapping Potential Adaptations to San Francisco Bay Area's Food System
- **101** Local Food in Santa Clara County
- **103** Modified Retail Food Environment in Santa Clara County
- **105** Baltimore City Food Swamps
- **106** Starving for Fresh Food: Food Deserts in Los Angeles
- **107** Drowning in Fast Food: Food Swamps in Los Angeles
- **109** San Francisco Urban Agricultural Projects
- 111 Land Availability in New York City
- **113** Cultivate the Commons, Urban Agriculture's Potential in Oakland, California
- **115** Growing Food and Community in West Oakland

#### 117 FOOD: EXPLORATION

- 119 Do a Marathon Harvest
- **120** Learn Your Cuts
- **121** Culinary Cartography
- **122** Cut Country Cookies
- **123** Map Your Taste
- 124 Where Has Your Bum Been?
- 125 Mold Mapping

#### 127 FOOD: IDENTITIES

- **128** Global Gastronomy: An Unofficial Map of National Dishes
- **131** Fermented Foods of the World
- 133 Global Spaghetti
- **135** Taboo Foods: Food and Drink People Avoid for Religious Reasons
- **137** A Lunchbox Foodshed
- **139** Fruity London: Mapping Where London Gets Its Fruit From, With Fruit
- 141 Undersea Migration: Where Tuna Goes When You're Not Eating It
- 143 Dulce de Leche
- **145** Everyday Eating of the Eastern Mediterranean
- **147** Craft Brewing in the USA
- **149** Muckleshoot Traditional Food Map
- **151** The Salt War of 1540 and the Pope's Bread: A Cartographic Refutation of a Perugian Urban Legend
- **153** Rice, Beans & A Pot: Foods as an Expression of Afro-Antillean Identity in the Archipelago of Bocas del Toro, Panama
- 155 Tacos de Oakland: Taco Trucks of East Oakland
- **156** Mapping Movement Through Food Purchase 2012
- **157** Mapping Memories of Food from the 1950s
- 159 Allmende-Kontor Community Garden
- **161** The Landscape We Eat
- **163** Map Notes
- **168** Collaborator/Backer Map
- 170 Acknowledgements, Collaborators, Backers

#### I am not a glutton — I am an explorer of food. —Erma Bombeck

There is nothing so simple nor anything so complicated. Food is the neighborhood blackberry bramble

foraged in midsummer. Food is the rice grain that finds its way to the table from halfway around the world.

The agricultural food base has become the first link in a chain of industries that deliver the fuel needed to energize the human body and mind. From it a vast complex of interrelated businesses—the global food industry—is focused on the production, distribution, preparation, and consumption of comestibles. There is almost no segment of the economy untouched by this network. And there is certainly no human unaffected by it. Despite the industrialization of food, it remains a personal and intimate human endeavor. We find community and identity in the food we eat. James Beard, American chef and early food writer, said it best: 'Food is our common ground, a universal experience.'



holistic picture of place through repeating geography that maps various phenomena of the atlas's subject area, or to examine a theme across a broad geography, striving to edify the reader on a particular subject. *Food: An Atlas* is of the latter. It illuminates a theme by its examination of food phenomena over a wide range of geographical scales, locations, and research disciplines.

This atlas fuses traditional cartography, poster art, infographics, and journalistic text blocking to render the map as a narrative device. Maps are a superb medium for illuminating complicated issues, and food is an exciting theme to explore. While food is an important aspect of our lives, few have a comprehensive understanding

#### guerrilla cartography

Books, paintings, dances, plays. The process of creating them rarely becomes a part of them. As art forms go, photography comes the closest to documenting itself by the nature of its recursive habit of "capturing reality."

This atlas, too, has a reference unto itself, its creation being a part of what is. In its pages are innumerable insights into the human relationship to food, and that exactly fulfills the atlas's intent. But there is another story in this atlas that must be told—the story of how it came to be. Why should the story of a little collection of maps be so important to tell? Because the story describes a new paradigm for collaborative knowledge-caching and sharing, a new way to make an atlas.

I have learned over many years as a cartographer that when working with data, especially spatial and temporal data, time is critical in the dissemination of information. I wanted to find a way to make an atlas in a few short months, so the food atlas would be an experiment in guerrilla cartography and guerrilla publishing. Guerrilla cartography because an open call for maps was distributed and shared through a network of people who care about geography, or food, or both, and cartographers and researchers would decide, by their submissions, what would appear in the atlas. And guerrilla publishing because we would not pitch our atlas or seek approval from a publishing house; instead we would publish our atlas by a consortium of supporters using a crowd-funding platform—the people are making this atlas, literally giving it form. We would further buck the commercial publishing model by pledging to give a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the atlas's first printing to an organization working for food justice somewhere in the world.

The crowd-sourcing model requires collaboration, but even if I could gather the maps, I could not, in less than six months, organize them into an atlas by myself so I set about recruiting volunteers to help me create the food atlas. I first called on Molly Roy, a former student who had helped me with the final editing of Mission Possible: A Neighborhood Atlas, and she happily joined the project as my co-editor (someone to share the glory and the blame). Acknowledging that it was an ambitious plan to make this atlas in a few short months, we wrote and sent out a call for maps to a cobbled list of 250 university cartography

of current food systems. By exploring and mapping the world of food, we gain a better understanding of the role food plays in our lives, in our communities, and upon our planet.

In traditional atlases, maps are uniformly designed and adhere to specific conventions of data representation and symbolization. Because of its crowd-sourced nature, *Food: An Atlas* breaks from this practice. Here, each map expresses the aesthetic sensibilities and choices made by the individual researchers and cartographers. In this way, the atlas is more like a curated exhibit. Each map is intended to tell its own story, but together the maps imagine a collective narrative, one that the reader is invited to enter on any page.

The maps in this atlas represent a cross-section of issues that concern modern geographers and food researchers. Submissions revealed a wide scope of prevailing food issues, and in this way the atlas organized itself into chapters on production, distribution, security, and identity. The atlas explores themes ranging from agriculture and land use to food processing and distribution, from issues of food security and health to concepts about identity, cuisine, and ideas about our relationships with food—mapping food in its myriad contexts. It is telling that the largest number of maps are concerned with issues of adequate and healthful access to food.

Within each chapter, maps are organized by scale, from small to large. Each begins with a view of the world and moves through increasingly larger scales, highlighting the food phenomena of continents, countries, provinces and regions, to the city, the neighborhood, and the dinner plate. From the Basque Country to Okinawa, Copenhagen to Buenos Aires—the maps depict a diversity of locations.

As a survey of the geography of food, the maps range across the scope of food themes, and the geographies are diffuse. Each map could form the basis for an atlas of its own. A map about a nonprofit working on urban agriculture in Oakland, California, spurs us to think about the possibility of other urban agriculture projects in other cities. It also raises questions about what else is going on in Oakland's foodscape. And while the atlas presents other maps or GIS labs and food policy networks. From there, the call circulated among personal networks and blogs. Responses came pouring in, and almost instantly a community of guerrilla cartographers was born.

Many maps were created by groups already working together at a university or collective, and some were made by people who met only as we paired willing researchers and cartographers. In this age of connectivity, some collaborating teams were separated by international boundaries, even oceans, while others worked across town and still never met face-to-face.

The guerrilla cartographers said yes to Food: An Atlas with their submissions. The next step was to find out if the crowd would help build the atlas and then fund a guerrilla publishing project.

With only an opportunity to work collaboratively with our loose band of guerrilla cartographers to offer, we reached out to our local networks to help with organization and compilation of the atlas. Kaitlin Jaffe answered the call to manage book production, Querido Galdo said yes to design, and Russell Wagner agreed to handle layout.

With content pouring in, Molly and I realized that we needed help expert help—in editing and organizing the maps into a narrative. We set about to organize an editorial panel and found them in publisher Russell Wagner (doing double duty), data visualization specialist Cynthia King, author Temra Costa, and geographer and writer Joshua Jelly-Schapiro.

Emily Busch and MC Abbott answered the call to manage our Kickstarter crowd-funding platform, but talent, organization, and good intentions were not by themselves going to guarantee a successful campaign. The campaign had to be compelling, and deciding we needed a well-made video introduction, we reached out to Elliot Waring.

To attract larger funders, we expanded our guerrilla community to include book artist Ava Sakaya Rosen, who agreed to hand-build a deluxe edition of the atlas. Then cartographer Nica Powell agreed to take a busload of supporters on a tour based on her Taco Trucks of East Oakland map. Bocanova (a locally-sourced restaurant in Oakland) donated a chef's dinner and we offered up a dinner party with our core team at my home. These premium rewards garnered us more financial backing and enlarged the community of guerrilla publishers. about urban agriculture as well as other maps of Oakland's food environment, we can't begin to fully elucidate the story of urban agriculture in the world—or even in Oakland.

The scholarship and artistry invested in these maps is impressive. They are informative and thought provoking, they are beautiful, and they give shape to the world of food. But in a mere seventy maps it is impossible to map every commodity, distribution network, cuisine, or food identity. This atlas cannot tell every food story. But it can tell more than seventy stories if you let the maps inform each other as well as your own curiosity.

This atlas will provoke more questions than the answers it provides, and that's fantastic, because what we are charged to do as scholars of food is to get people to think about these issues, to foster conversations, and to promote further investigation about our world through the lens of food. We hope that these conversations and investigations generate more food maps, especially dealing with the geographies (South America and, especially, Asia and Africa) that are not well represented here, and subjects that are absent or under represented. What can we teach each other through maps—about seeds, pollinators, fisheries, food histories, food workers... with so many subjects to be explored a list risks becoming a litany. It is enough to say that there are innumerable possibilities. Only the community of guerrilla cartographers can decide what will appear in future volumes of *Food: An Atlas.*  We became proactive, almost aggressive, in seeking exposure. We reached out to food bloggers and journalists everyone we could think of. We also had a built in network of our collaborators, and each of them had networks to exploit—and exploit we did!

The campaign ended on Tuesday, October 23, with 747 people backing the project. Our collaborators include well more than one hundred people across the globe: volunteer researchers and cartographers who created the maps, the design and production team who compiled the atlas, the editorial panel who critically reviewed the maps, and the Kickstarter team who managed the crowd-funding campaign, all working in the spirit of collaboration and community knowledge-caching.

The artifact that you hold in your hands—an atlas on the geography of food—is the tangible result of all these people's efforts. But this project has created more than an atlas; it has created a community of guerrilla cartographers—one that you will surely hear from again.

— Darin Jensen, December 2012



## **FOOD**: production

**Eating is an agricultural act.** — Wendell Berry

In the time since the first farmers settled in the Fertile Crescent, our relationship to food and the natural world has changed dramatically. We have developed ever-more sophisticated agricultural systems now capable of producing vast amounts of food. In fact, we've become so efficient at doing so that by 1996 humans were producing enough food to provide every man, woman, and child on Earth with over 2500 calories per day—some 400 calories more than the average adult requires for healthful nourishment.<sup>1</sup>

In today's world, small numbers of people—some indigenous tribes, hunters and fisherman—forage or kill most of what they eat. But the majority of the world's seven billion inhabitants are now mostly dependent on large-scale food production systems.<sup>2</sup> This dependency has impacted natural systems and reduced the diversity of what we eat. Of 10,000 plant varieties used as human food since the origin of food production, today only around 150 constitute the green part of the world's diet.<sup>3</sup>

This chapter explores food production at scales from the global to the (hyper-) local, from the global expansion of agricultural land over time to rooftop-farming potential in modern cities, with maps of foodstuff cultivation at regional scales in between. Together these maps illustrate the relationship of food production to place, resources, and space. Harvesting the World

Bill Rankin

#### HARVESTING THE WORLD

#### Bill Rankin with data from Navin Ramankutty and Jonathan Foley, 2011 [beta].

The spread of agriculture over the last three hundred years has been a dance of intensification and expansion. Nearly every area of the world has seen agriculture become more intensive and locally dense, even in areas where it has long been established. Since 1850, this steady state of intensification has been punctuated by several episodes of rapid expansion into previously untapped areas: the Great Plains of the United States and Canada in the late nineteenth century, Argentina in the early twentieth century, and in last few decades, southern Brazil and central India. Decline is relatively rare, but it has happened, such as in eastern China, northern France, or the American South after World War II.

There are two important lessons here. First, the transportation revolution that began in the mid-nineteenth century is far from over; vast stretches of Africa, South America, and Southeast Asia could still be opened up to agricultural uses. Preserving these rainforest areas will require further intensification elsewhere. Second, with many agricultural areas at close to 100 percent exploitation, it would seem that much of the logic of density and densification usually applied to cities could apply equally well to agricultural areas. A simple divide between "urban" and "rural" is perhaps less instructive than an analysis of different kinds of intensifications.





Foodscapes: Agricultural Landscapes of the World

Benjamin D Hennig

1



Visualising the real extent of agricultural areas on the planet Each grid cell on the map is related to an equal space in the physical world. The size of a grid cell reflects the area of agricultural land in that space in relation to the other grid cells. A grid cell twice as big as another has twice as much agricultural land in its area.

In the year 2000 there were approximately 15 million km<sup>2</sup> (5.8 million mi<sup>2</sup>) of cropland and **28 million km<sup>2</sup> (10.8 million mi<sup>2</sup>)** of **pasture**, which are represented in the two main maps. These equal **12%** and **22%** respectively, of the planet's ice-free land surface.



Croplands

astures



In many parts of the world, areas unsuitable for crop cultivation due to climate and water conditions are instead used for livestock. Such areas can be found in large parts of Central Asia and Australia.

Author & Cartographer: Benjamin D. Hennig 🎯 www.viewsoftheworld.net

Reference Map

Worldmapper

Gridded Cartogram of Global Agricultural Lands, 2000; Data Source: Ramankutty/Evan/Monfreda/Foley, 2008 & Socioeconomic Data and Applications Center (SEDAC), 2010

#### Aroids: The World's Oldest Food Crop

Karin Vaneker & Erwin Slaats

## **AROIDS: THE WORLD'S OLDEST FOOD CROP**

#### AROIDS (L. ARACEAE)

CULTIVATED AROIDS

used as food are: • Elephant ear (L. Alocasia)

• Taro (L. *Colocasia*)

• Tannia (L. Xanthosoma)

Aroids, or taro, is a common name for Aroids are the world's oldest food plants belonging to the Araceae family crops, and were the most widely of plants. The aroid plant family compri- distributed starchy food plants during ses of more than 120 genera and 3750 the 16th and 19th century. Cultivation species of which many are used as food, already occurred when rice and wheat medicine, animal fodder, orna- mental were just weeds. Archaeological plants and cut flowers. The main centres evidence from the Solomon Islands of origin and diversity of aroids are tropical Asia and tropical America.

#### ORIGIN

suggests that taro was already in use around 28,700 years ago.

#### CULTIVATION

Aroids are a staple crop for several hundred million small farmers throughout the tropical world. It is roughly estimated that around 500 million people are involved in the cultivation, consumption and trade of aroids. Today, taro and tannia are widely grown in tropical and subtropical temperate areas throughout the world. boiling, drying and fermentation.

#### CONSUMPTION

Aroids are almost exclusively eaten by the populations of Asia, Africa, Latin America, the Caribbean and immigrant communities from these areas that are living in dense urban areas in the Western Hemisphere. Common and ancient preparation techniques are baking, roasting,



All plant parts of aroids are edible, and have good nutritional qualities. The roots and tubers are versatile and rich in carbohydrates, vitamins, minerals, as well as being hypoallergenic. The leaves, stems and petioles are frequently eaten as a green vegetable and represent an important source of vitamins, especially folic acid.

#### CULTURAL & CULINARY HERITAGE

Aroids and aroid dishes, are also part of national, local, culinary and cultural heritage in numerous communities in and from Africa, Asia, Latin America and Polynesia. In many cultures aroids are sacred plants with high prestige and carry a deeply symbolic meaning and strong cultural value, intrinsic to cultural identity.











USCB 2012 & FAO 2010 estimates





#### The World According to Chile Peppers

Gerald Zhang-Schmidt & Crystalyn DelaCruz

## The World According to Chile Peppers



#### Origins

The nuclear area of the genus *Capsicum*, where it arose several thousand years ago, was apparently in Eastern Bolivia. From there, it spread throughout subtropical and tropical South and Central America, where it belonged to the first cultivated food plants (to which remains from 6000 years ago attest). The very adoption of the chile pepper into the human diet is a riddle, as no other mammals develop the liking for their pungency that humans acquire. Theories range from nutritional benefits and antimicrobial effect (vitamin content and protection against food-borne illnesses) to physiological benefits (chile-induced sweating helps to cool in hot climates).

#### Spread

Given the importance of spices in medieval Europe, it is not surprising that Christopher Columbus should have brought back chile peppers on his very first voyage. It is not known how they were first received, but they spread quickly and widely.

- In 1542, Leonhart Fuchs (in *De Historia Stirpium*) spoke of "Indian" or "Calecutian" pepper, believing them to be from South Asia.
- Clusius (Charles De L'Escluse), writing in *Curae posteriores* (Curaposter; 1611) mentions peppers being grown in Castilia, Spain and around Brünn, Moravia.
- Nikolaus von Jacquin, in perhaps the strangest twist, gives *Capsicum chinense* its name "after its homeland" China, where this species is still but rarely found, even though he also mentions having seen it on the Caribbean island Martinique (Hortus botanicus vindobonensis, 1770-1776).
- About the same time (between 1750-1800), a medicinal thangka was created in Tibet with depictions of chile peppers as medicinal plants.

#### Modern Importance

By now, chile peppers have become major crops and commodities, as well as an integral part of many cuisines and cultures around the world. For Mexicans. Bhutanese. Chinese from Sichuan and Hunan, and other so-called "chileheads" around the world, eating spicy foods is a marker of cultural identity. In various parts of the world, chile peppers also find use or representation in practices to ward off evil and bring good luck. Chile pepper festivals in the USA and Europe celebrate traditional varieties and uses of the spicy pods. In continuation of the chile pepper craze, the hot sauce market is currently one area of growth and the hunt for the hottest pepper has heated up in recent years. The Bhut Jolokia, from Assam and Nagaland, India, gained notoriety as the hottest pepper, thus becoming popular. It was recently surpassed by the Trinidad Scorpion and Trinidad Moruga Scorpion. These peppers originated in Trinidad and were further developed in Australia and the USA.

> Author: Gerald Zhang-Schmidt Cartographer: Crystalyn DelaCruz

The Grain Necessities

Kamini Iyer

— next pages —

A Landscape of Specialization

Bill Rankin





		×* •	<b>3</b> 2
Guam and	American	Hawaii	Puerto Rico and
Northern Marianas	Samoa (2003)		U.S. Virgin Islands









# Crops

Percent of land devoted to each crop in 2007, by county.

	0%	20%	40%	60% of county land
Corn				highest county percentage: 63% corn total U.S. corn: 144,107 square miles
Wheat		highest county percentage: 44% wheat total U.S. wheat: 79,583 square miles		
Soybeans				highest county percentage: 55% soybeans total U.S. soybeans: 99,868 square miles
Cotton				highest county percentage: 48% cotton total U.S. cotton: 16,396 square miles
Hay / Silage		highe total l	st coun J.S <mark>.</mark> hay	y percentage: 26% hay / silage / silage: 96,024 square miles
Fruits, Nuts, Vegetables			high total	est county percentage: 38% fruits, nuts, or vegetables U.S. fruits, nuts, and vegetables: 23,858 square miles

# Animals

Population density by county based on inventory at the time of the 2007 census.



For comparison, the density of Manhattan is about 58,000 humans per square mile

# Value

Aggregate market value of all agricultural products sold in 2007, by county.



#### A LANDSCAPE OF SPECIALIZATION Bill Rankin

The geography of US agriculture is not a smooth space of overlapping local conditions; it is instead a disjointed and lumpy space of specialization. With the exception of some crops in the Midwest, there are few areas where different commodities are grown side by side, and while cattle are distributed relatively evenly throughout the country, the production of all other animals is quite concentrated.

These maps suggest that we need to rethink our commonplace ideas of localism and the virtues of local farming. While local food is often more healthful or sustainable, the idea that the US could become a nation of locavores is absurd. No major city could ever source all of its food from local farms-not even those close to major agricultural areas.

All maps shown at the same scale using equal-area projections. Data from the 2007 US Census of Agriculture.

The American Beershed

Cameron Reed

## **THE AMERICAN BEERSHED**

The basic ingredients of beer are water, malted grain, hops, and yeast. Malted barley is the most common grain used for brewing beer and, when boiled, it releases fermentable sugars which the yeast convert into alcohol. Hops are used to add bitterness and flavor in order to balance the sweetness of the malt.







Fungus AmongUS: Mushroom Farms in the USA

Shannon Kail & Terra N Tice



By: Shannon Kail with Terra N. Tice. Sources: Mushroom Grower's Online News Letter, USDA, & American Mushroom Institute

Commodity Agriculture and Subsidies

Urban Design Lab

#### Commodity Agriculture and Subsidies

U.S. grain corn and vegetable production + payments received from federal farm programs



since the 1930's. That year, \$1.8 billion went toward land conservationrelated programs, while the remainder was used to support the production of major agricultural commodities, irrespective of farm need (this total does not include subsidized crop insurance). From 1955 to 2011, approximately 38% of such payments have historically gone to producers of grain corn (used primarily for animal feed and as a biofuel), with the other major

commodity crops (cotton, wheat, rice, and soybeans) accounting for an additional 50%. Most fruit and vegetable crops were not eligible for such payments (many produce growers advocated against direct subsidies due to concerns about price deflation). The pending 2012 Farm Bill legislation would reduce or eliminate direct payments for most commodity crops. Production of feed and fuel crops such as corn is heavily concentrated in the highly fertile land of the Midwestern U.S., while vegetable crops are generally produced closer to population centers and near the coasts. Wealth and Agricultural Subsides in the European Union

Chris Carson

## WEALTH AND AGRICULTURAL SUBSIDIES IN THE EUROPEAN UNION

Agricultural subsidies amount to a large portion of the European Union's annual expenditures. With a total budget of just over 130 billion euros, the EU spent over 50 billion on agricultural subsidies in 2008. The largest recipient of these funds was France, taking in around 10.1 billion euros.

Here, one can track where that money is going, observing the allotment of agricultural subsidies within the EU, in relation to the distribution of wealth, measured in gross domestic product (GDP) per capita. Data points are distributed across the major acricultural areas of each province, proportional to the amount of money the province receives.

International borders are not shown in order to demonstrate how economic differences can be more prominant than political boundaries.

Enumeration areas are administrative regions as defined by each country. Due to a lack of available statistics, some countries do not have sub-national enumeration areas. All data is from 2008.

Sources: Europa.eu, Farmsubsidy.org.

# Gross Domestic Product per capita €80,000 €60,000 €40,000 €20,000 €0 Outside the EU €50,000,000 in subsidies

Protecting Food Specialities in the EU

Giuliano Petrarulo

## Protecting Food Specialities in the EU

Europe has many different regions and the conditions for agricultural production vary. The different regions have specific production methods and culinay traditions.

European, global consumers and food trade are showing an increasing interest in the qualities of these foods.

The EU plays a major role in enhancing and safeguarding in many ways these high quality attributes and, for this reason, has developed three quality logos: PDO, TSG and PGI.



PROTECTED DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN (PDO)

A PDO gives status to a food product which is produced entirely within a defined geographical area using recognised skills and ingredients from the region and which is linked to its geographical origin. PDOs include many cheeses (e.g. Parmigiano Reggiano, Feta, Queso Manchego), meat products (such as Prosciutto San Daniele), olive oil (Kalamata, Montoro-Adamuz, Umbria), fruits and vegetables and many wines. TRADITIONAL SPECIALITY GUARANTEED (TSG)

A TSG emphasises a product's traditional make-up or traditional production method. It is therefore not linked to a geographical region (Jamon Serrano is an example).

Finland



PROTECTED GEOGRAPHICAL INDICATION (PGI)

A PGI denotes a food linked by its quality and reputation to a region in which at least one stage of production took place. PGIs include beers (Münchener Bier, Ceskobudejovicke Pivo), meat (Scotch Beef, many types of French poultry) and also bakery products and fish (notably Scottish Farmed Salmon).

> REGISTERED DESIGNATIONS BY COUNTRY



Made in the Shade: Bird Friendly Coffee

Anika Rice



## Made in the Shade: **Bird Friendly Coffee**

The "Bird Friendly" certification (BFC) mark identifies organic coffees from around the world that are grown beneath a shade cover. This provides quality habitat for birds—both migrant and resident—and other organisms. The forest-like setting of Bird Friendly farms shows how managed lands can serve as a refuge for biodiversity.

Research at the Smithsonian Migratory Bird Center (SMBC) continues to explore ways that agricultural lands can have environmental value, ultimately linking conservation to the market place. Bird Friendly coffee's third-party inspection and certification assures consumers that their habit is steeped in habitat.



#### Annual Production, 2011









#### **Quick Facts**

• BFC was created in 1996-1997 at the Smithsonian Migratory Bird Center.

- There are about 1,714 producers of BFC at farms and co-ops.
- There are about 9,100 hectares of land in production.
- BFC works with 16 importers and 49 roasters.

#### Oenocarpus bataua: The Original Amazonian Superfood

Paul V A Fine, Sarah Lewis & Tarek Milleron

— next pages —

California's Growing Organic Farm Movement

Michele S Forman & Terra N Tice



Inventory plot data from the Amazon Tree Diversity Network and the RAINFOR Networ Iquitos data provided by H. Balslev, Aarhus University, Denmark, funded by Danish NSR

<sup>&</sup>quot;Today we are serving Majo milk





## California's Growing Organic Farm Movement

Overseen by the United States Department of Agriculture, The California Agriculture Department's Organic Division, founded in 1979, has blossomed into a dynamic industry with 1,898 organic farms registered in 2011.

When organic sales reach \$5000, official certification by an outside testing company is required. Fees of 1-2% of gross receipts is used to maintain the state inspection program.

Today, California produces more than 90% of all U.S. organic sales for 14 different commodities, including 99% of walnuts, lemons, figs and artichokes and 100% of almonds and dates.

The two largest crop yields are lettuce and grapes. 81% of organic sales are made to wholesalers with the rest to retail chains with only 7% of sales direct to consumers at farm stands or markets.

Organic produce is exported to Canada, the European Union, Hong Kong, China, Mexico, India, Australia, Taiwan and United Arab Emirates.

All 150 organic crops grown in California are represented on this map. In 2010, 32% of organic farmers stated their intent to increase production with 44% planning to maintain their current levels.

Organic produce currently costs more than non-organic produce but with growing public awareness and demand, prices will drop.

484	Selected Grain Crops	Annual Sales (\$ Millions)	% of sales
Nuts nuts	Grains	\$ 45	5.4
Crain	Herbs	\$29	3.4
Giain	Nuts	\$37	4.4
	Vegetables	\$330	39.5
Serrie	/ 🗕 Fruit	\$242	29
Ervit 3	<ul> <li>Berries</li> </ul>	\$152	18.2
	Honey	\$.00072	.00072

Maryland Meat Maps

Amanda Behrens, Julia Simons, James Harding, Michael Milli

## Pork Production and Slaughter

- In general, pork slaughter seems to meet the demand – counties that raise the most pork tend to have more, and bigger, slaughter facilities.
- There is some concentration of pork production is in the western and central regions.
- Some regions where pork is produced, however, namely Southern Maryland and the Eastern Shore, lack slaughter infrastructure.

**Questions:** Where do hog farmers without nearby slaughter facilities take their livestock? Do they travel long distances or out of state, or slaughter on-farm?

## Beef Production and Slaughter

- Beef production is concentrated in the Central and Western regions of the state, as are beef slaughter facilities.
- Currently, there is more beef production than hog production in Maryland.
- Similar to hogs, in Southern Maryland and the Eastern Shore, there is no beef slaughter infrastructure.

**Questions**: Again, where do beef farmers without slaughter facilities take their cattle? Did Southern Maryland and the Eastern Shore lose infrastructure or was beef not historically a large industry there?

> JOHNS HOPKINS BLOOMBERG SCHOOL # PUBLIC HEALTH

#### Pork Production and Slaughter



laps

#### **Beef Production and Slaughter**



#### **Poultry Production and Slaughter**



## Poultry Production and Slaughter

- Maryland's poultry production is heavily concentrated on the Eastern Shore. It is the only animal agriculture that operates on an extremely large scale in the state.
- Three companies dominate the industry in Maryland, relying on contract farmers who raise the chickens. These companies operate the only commercial slaughter facilities there.
- Only one commercial facility is open to small poultry producers in the state. The other small facilities are on-farm and only used by the farmers that raise the chickens.

**Questions**: If there were more publicly accessible poultry processing plants in Maryland, would more farmers raise chickens, without contracts? Where would the ideal locations for additional plants be?



**Sources**: USDA FSIS, 2012; MDA Food Quality Assurance Program, 2012; USDA Census of Agriculture, 2007; MD Slaughter Facility interviews, 2012

**Contributors**: Amanda Behrens & Julia Simons (authors), James Harding (cartographer), Michael Milli (designer)

mdfoodsystemmap.org

JOHNS HOPKINS Center for a Livable Future Texas Seafood Landings

Robyn Metcalfe & Jeff Ingebritsen



The Garden City: Los Angeles, 1940

Alex Tarr & Rosten Woo

— next pages —

Potential Rooftop Farming in New York City Food Production in New York City

Urban Design Lab





#### POTENTIAL ROOFTOP FARMING IN NEW YORK CITY

New York City has the world's largest acreage devoted to food producing rooftops, due in part to its density (and corresponding site availability challenges), concentrations of appropriate building stock, and easy access to transportation and retail infrastructure. This map highlights the overall rooftop agriculture potential, with buildings constructed between 1900 and 1970 incorporating a rooftop area greater than 10,000 square feet, and within a commercial, manufacturing, or commercial overlay zone, and excluding heavy manufacturing, garages and gas stations, and utilities.



Compost Green Map of Manhattan: Worms in the Green Apple

Wendy E Brawer, Carlos Martinez, Anya Farquhar, Jane Barber, Risa Ishikawa, Andrew Sass, Aaron Reiss

#### **Compost Green Map** of Manhattan

Worms in the Green Apple

- Public Composting Site School with Composting
- **1** Environmental Center
- 🕭 Greenmarket
- Great Views
- **Pire Parklands/Recreation Area**
- Sommunity Garden
- Rooftop Garden
- **6** Native Plants 💥 Solar Energy
- 🕌 Special Household Waste Stati
- Info Resources Online



#### 8 😵 💥 Rodale Pleasant Park Garden

437 E. 114th St. Three bin composters, with rainwater recycling and straw-bale shed!

#### 9 👫 🟅 Central Park Conservancy

Compost Drive, near E. 105th St. behind Conservatory Garden CPC composts all the Park's yard waste in windrows.

#### 10 🧯 👗

High School for Environmental Studies 444 W. 56th St. Worm bins in classrooms, garden waste composting on the green roof & even a composting club.

#### 11 😵 🟅

Clinton Community Garden West 48th St. btw 9th and 10th Aves. Composting, bee hives and flower native plant and vegetable gardens.

#### 12 🗳 🕰

NYC Department of Sanitation Special Household Waste Drop Off Station 605 W. 30th St. btw 11 & 12 Aves

NYC.gov/wasteless 13 🧰 👗 The School of the Future

127 E. 22nd St. Vermicomposting of local business waste and green roof!

#### 14 指 🔆 Solar One

E. 23rd St. & FDR Drive Educational worm bin for food waste. Green building and arts, too!

#### 15 👫 🐻 Stuyvesant Cove Park

E. 18th - 23rd St. & FDR Drive 3-bin compost system for yard waste, mid-park. Riverside refreshment!

#### 16 🗳 🕭 Union Square Greenmarket

17th St. & Park Ave. South Public drop off & compost outreact every MWF & Sat. 8am to 5pm.

#### 17 🐯 🎘 Lower East Side Garden E. I I th St. east of I st Ave. Composting in Open Road's student-designed garden.

1 **1 🕈 👫** Inwood Hill Park Nature Center 218th & Indian Rd.

Large-scale worm bin for community & Center's food waste. Educational portable worm bin, too. 2 🐯 🌺

**Riverside-Inwood Neighborhood** Garden (RING) Dyckman, Riverside & Broadway triangle 3 compost bins, 2 wire holding pens & worm bin. Schools program, butterflies and more.

з 🧴 👗 Our Lady Queen of Martyrs School I Arden St. Composting cafeteria waste in rooftop

garden. 4 😲 👁 Riley-Levin Children's Garden Swindler Cove Park Harlem River Drive & Dyckman St.

Compost bin in children's garden. 5 💭 🐯 West 181st Street **Beautification Project** 880 W. 181st St. Public drop off. Compost in beautiful ommunity garden with youth leadership program.

6 🗳 🐯 West 124th Street Community Garden Between Lenox & Fifth Aves.

Small but growing bin system and workshops in Spanish & English!

PS 76 A.P. Randolph School 220 W. 121st St. Fun Roly Pig compost bin and yard waste system.

(11 🕫 )

ø

(28 🋕 )

29 👫

(10 🎪 )

Bryant Park (12) Madisor Square

Union Square



(27 à) Henry



2 😲

3 🧯

6 🖉

00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00

5 Ste

7 🏟 👝

9 👫

2 4 9

Every day, more New Yorkers are composting. Almost 200 Scommunity garden offer Manhattanites a grea place to start composting. Only C Sites welcome public drop offs! This map features 🧐 with compost and education programs ar they're a great way to creat community and clean air, oo. Citywide, find the clos est ♥at @OasisNYC.net.



#### 18 🗳 👁

La Plaza Cultural Armando Perez 9th Street & Avenue C 3 bin system with tumbler for mem-bers only. Great art & amphitheater 19 🗳 🐯

#### Lower East Side Ecology

Public drop off, any time through ga opening. Community garden open year-round: Sundays 8am to 5pm.

Franklin Roosevelt PS 34 730 E. 12th St. Educational composting in histo

E. 6th St. & Ave. B, corner & mid-block Composting their own vard waste an garden members' food waste.

#### Earth School

600 E. 6th St. Outdoor bins in school's garden for yard waste & students' food waste.

Delancey St. & FDR Drive LESEC's custom-built in-vessel food

#### 24 🕺 👫

Grand St. Fireboat House Grand St. & FDR Drive LESEC's East River Park Environme tal Learning Center. Compost & ecology workshops & events, year-round!

PS 134 293 East Broadway Classroom worm bins & garden compost site in develo

#### 26 🧴

Locations in Lower Manhatan NYU's 13 dining halls began com posting in 2008. Averaging 15 tons per day, find out more about their campus-wide greening program at 
PNU.edu/sustainability.

#### 27 🧰 PS 2

14 **í** 

18 💭 20 🎪

(19 📿

22 🤬

(25 **á** 

0

(15 👫

23 👫

(24 **1** 

122 Henry St. Classroom worm bins 28 🧰 City As School

16 Clarkson St. Project Grow composting entrepreneurship program 29 👫 👁

#### Battery Park City Parks

Conservancy Battery Park Pl. & Thames St. Advanced compost systems for office & supermarket food waste. Eco-smart "Leave it on the Lawn" policy & wind-rows for yard waste.

#### Why Compost in NYC?

The average NYC household discards two pounds of organic waste each day. Citywide that's 1,000,000 tons a year! Composting turn this mountain of material into a renewable resource that helps green up NYC, indoors and out. Composting is the most energyefficient kind of recycling, and helps reduce th number of stinky garbage truck trips, too!



As seen in Central Park

#### Worms in the Green Apple

Worm composting (vermicomposting) is an indoor method for recycling food waste into rich compost. Fill a container with moistened newspaper and red worms, then continually add food and plant waste. Red wiggler worms eat half their weight in food each day and leave worm castings (a.k.a. compost) behind, so it's really effective, even for busy New Yorkers!



Red wiggler worms

#### What can I Compost?

GREENS ials that are rich in nitrogen

Fruit and Vegetable scraps Coffee grounds & Filters Tea bags Green plants Hedge trimmings Grass clippings Weeds (without seeds) Feathers Spoiled juice

#### BROWNS aterials that are rich in carbon

Fall leaves & Spent plants Twigs and Wood chips Sawdust & Wood shavings Shredded Newspaper Egg shells and Nutshells Bread and grains Wood ashes Food-soiled Paper towels & Napkins





OpenGreenMap.org/compostNYC

Explore the movement in 65 countries at GreenMap.org

Sources: Green Map System, Lower East Side Ecology Center, GrowNYC, Manhattan Borough President's Office, NYU Sustainability, Green Thumb Grow Together participants and others.

By Wendy E. Brawer & Carlos Martinez (Authors), Anya Farquhar, Jane Barber Design, Risa Ishikawa & Andrew Sass (Graphic Designers) and Aaron Reiss (Book Layout)

Center Garden E. 7th St. btw Aves. B & C (north side) 20 🧰

garden setting. 21 😵 🏅 6B Garden & 6BC Garden

22 🧰

23 👫 🗢

East River Park

waste system composts waste collect ed from their public drop off sites.

25 🧴

New York University

Toronto's Eco-Schools: From Food Waste to Food Gardens

Asya Bidordinova, Tammara Soma, Vick Naresh

# TORONTO'S ECO-SCHOOLS FROM FOOD WASTE TO FOOD GARDENS Lake Ontario

In Toronto, the Eco-school certification acknowledges schools that integrate environmental awareness and action into their everyday school activities. Schools can be certified as a bronze, silver, gold or platinum level Eco-school. The four components of Eco-school certification are energy conservation, school ground greening, ecologi- ON-SITE COMPOSTING + ONSITE GARDEN cal literacy, and waste minimization. Within the category of waste minimization, many Eco-schools are tackling the issue of food waste by participating in an onsite composting or green bin program.

This map highlights gold and platinum level Eco-schools in Toronto that have demonstrated commitment to a sustainable food system by way of on-site composting, green bin organic collection, and or school gardening activities. Other schools identified by the small red dots will hopefully follow in this path of environmental stewardship.

Managing food waste appropriately in school is important as it diverts food waste from the landfill and turns food waste into a resource!

- ON-SITE GARDEN
- GREEN BIN PROGRAM
- ON-SITE GARDEN + GREEN BIN PROGRAM

#### **Important Fact**





#### EXAMPLE OF A CLOSED LOOP FOOD SYSTEM IN SCHOOL



Map & Text: Asya Bidordinova & Tammara Soma Graphic Design: Vick Naresh Data Source: Open Data - City of Toronto, www.toronto.ca/open



## **FOOD**: distribution

"Would you like that for here or to go?"

Unless you're a back-to-the-lander or live in a 100% selfsufficient village, you rely on various means of food distribution to get your daily bread. Even farmers market produce travels around 100 miles to reach your neighborhood stall. An intricate network of farmers, processors, stevedores, and middlemen all play their part in a vast system of food distribution and transport that now implicates the entire world. From the redundant trade of tomatoes in Europe and the world conquest of the California almond industry to farmers markets' food miles and the availability of fallen fruit, this chapter explores the travels of food.

#### Food in Flux: The World of Imports

Chelsea Guerrero

When food becomes a global commodity, individual survival depends on global trade. Dependence on food imports is dictated by a number of factors. Too little Food in Flux: The World of Imports farmland within a country results in too little food for its people. International trade rules and tariffs force some to buy cheap goods from others rather than grow it themselves. A peoples' changing diet may demand foreign products. The map below gives a snapshot of this dynamic global food trade.



#### Percentage of Food Imports to **Total Food Available**

These percentages indicate the extent to which a country depends upon imports to feed its population



"Gross food import" calculations cover all movement of food commodities into a country, "total food available" represents the amount of food available only for human consumption. This yields very high food import to total food available calculations, some of which exceed 100%.

#### **Highly Import-Dependent Countries**

There is a lot of variation among import-dependent countries. Even seemingly 'well off' countries (those with high per capita food supplies) can be just as import-dependent as those with high per capita food supplies) can be just as import-dependent as those with lower per capita food supplies. In addition, some of the most import-dependent actually export more food to the rest of the world than they import (indicated by a "positive" balance of trade)

Country	Per Capita Food Supply	Balance of Trade
Country	(kg/day)	(exports - imports)
Israel	3611	negative
Portugal	3582	negative
Ireland	3564	negative
Norway	3487	negative
Denmark	3393	positive
Spain	3269	negative
Ū.A.E.	3211	negative
Saudi Aral	oia 3082	negative
Malaysia	2881	positive
Djibouti	2321	negative





Source: Food and Agriculture Organization, 2005–2007 and 2010. By Chelsea Guerrero

Global Almond Trade and California

Garrett Bradford

## Global Almond Trade and California



A Tomato's European Tour

Lucia Argüelles & Jennifer Lara



detriment of the environment or the poorest countries.

#### TOMATOES EUROPEAN TOUR

the EU borders, as well as across other transnational frontiers.

Differences in climate and consumption patterns make the Some countries import and export raw tomatoes. This is the case of Spain, movement of food a reality in this globalized world. These which is a net exporter but imports raw tomatoes from Morocco and movements, commonly in form of transboundary imports and France among others. The reasons behind these imports are diverse exports, have a relevant environmental impact, as well as an (climatic, economical) but mainly political (commercial treaties). In some economic influence in the countries involved. International trade cases, countries import from and export to another country. This leads to treaties influence the direction of these transits, often to the situations like the one reflected by the exports chain in the map. A tomato grown in Spain, could be, conceivably, exported several times and end up in Spain again.

Tomatoes are the most consumed and most produced Harm to the environment by air and noise pollution and resource vegetable within the EU. Tomatoes are consumed throughout depletion could be reduced by only consuming fruits and vegetables of the year. Vast amounts of raw tomatoes are transported within the season and minimizing transportation distances. These issues are addressed by the Slow Food Movement, which call for a responsible food consumption.

The Distance Your Food Will Go to Be Eaten: A Food Mile Comparison

Diana Martin



A Geography of Illinois Wheat

Sarah Kavage

— next pages —

Fresh Catch: Community Supported Fishery in Massachusetts Farm to Table: Community Supported Agriculture in Massachusetts

Steven E Silvern & Milan Budhathoki

## A Geography Illinois Wheat

100 years ago, Illinois farmers were some of the country's largest wheat producers. Acreage devoted to wheat has been declining ever since and is now the third most common grain grown in the state, after corn and soybeans.





The first Community Supported Fishery (CSF) was formed in Port Clyde, Maine in 2007. Since 2007, the number of CSF has increased to 31 across coastal areas of the United States. CSF, modeled after Community Supported Agriculture, create direct connections between fisherman and consumers. Consumers buy a "share" upfront from the CSF and then receive delivery of a specific quantity of fish on a weekly or bi-weekly basis during fishing season. CSF customers express concern about the sources of their seafood and a desire to support a local, sustainable fishing economy. For fisherman, the benefit is greater revenue and profits through the elimination of wholesalers, auction houses and other middlemen. The map shows the location and delivery network for CSF located in Massachusetts. The Cape Ann Fresh Catch CSF in Gloucester is the largest CSF in the United States with 650 members. The delivery sites on the map include farmers markets and CSA farms.





#### Why People Start a CSA?



#### What are Major Challenges Identified by CSA Farmers?







Community Supported Agriculture (CSA) in the United States began in Massachusetts in 1985. In the CSA model, consumers receive food directly from local farms that produce vegetables, berries and more recently meat, grains and flowers. Mirroring national trends, the number of CSAs in Massachusetts has grown dramatically over the last few years from 74 in 2006 to 165 in 2011. The map above depicts the locations of CSAs in Massachusetts and the distribution network connecting farms to shareholders, showing how food flows across the state in a west to east direction with a focus on the metropolitan Boston region. CSA farmers deliver produce, often boxed, to shareholders at designated drop-off/pick-up sites in the Boston area.

Hampshire and Middlesex Counties stand out as having large clusters of CSAs and the largest number of shareholders. The shareholders pattern depicted on the map to the left may be explained in part by higher levels of income, education and the local culture.

Steven E. Silvern, Ph.D.(Author) Milan Budhathoki (Researcher and Cartographer)

Data Source

Salem State University Survey of CSAs, December 2011. Local Harvest, Northeast Organic Farming Association Massachusetts Department of Agriculture



Food Labels: Branding Place of Origin

Alicia Fisher, John-Mark Hack, Ryan Cooper, Benjamin Golder

## Food Labels: Branding Place of Origin

KENTUCKY

Nashville

ALABAMA

TENNESSE

In the U.S., state-sponsored agricultural marketing programs have given rise with the increase in consumer demand for high-quality, value-added products. Since the 1930's, states have been involved in marketing and differentiating agricultural products, such as Washington apples, Idaho potatoes, and Georgia peaches. By the 2000's a surge of states launched agricultural state-branding programs, with as many as 48 states today using a logo to brand state-wide agriculture.

Atlanta

Knoxville

Outside of state political boundaries, a new wave of grassroots activism across the U.S. has resulted in the growth of community-based organizations. These strategic, regional networks have formalized to organize and to mobilize resources to address economic, social, and environmental issues. Food system localization and sustainability are now central goals for many organizations of the alternative agriculture movement.

Appalachian Sustainable Agriculture Project (ASAP) is one example of the grassroots efforts to localize food through a network of producers, food processors, direct marketers, food servicers (restaurants, schools), agri-tourism, and retailers. ASAP was founded in 2002 and designed a branding and certification program marketing local foods, local farms, and healthy communities and currently serves 700+ members (•). ASAP's label is first-party certified because ASAP develops its own rules and assures consumers that it meets its own claims. The ASAP label signifies food origin--farm products are grown or raised in Western North Carolina and the Southern Appalachian Mountains.

Sources: ASAP, US Census 2010, Natural Earth



BGIN

CAROLINA

HIANG

Raleigh

WEST VIRGI

NORTH

ROLINA

Alicia Fisher, Author and Researcher John-Mark Hack, Researcher Ryan Cooper, Cartographer Benjamin Golder, Cartographer

#### Berkeley's Farmers' Markets

Cameron Reed

— next pages —

Fallen Fruit

David Burns, Matias Viegener, Austin Young

## **BERKELEY'S FARMERS' MARKETS**

The City of Berkeley, California, hosts 3 weekly farmers' markets that attract more than 80 diverse vendors. Most of these vendors are from within 100 miles, a distance commonly used to determine a city's local foodshed. Alameda County, in which Berkeley is located, features the largest number of vendors that serve the city. The markets are great places to find fresh local produce, dairy, meat, baked goods, and more.


Hospicio Cabañas, founded in 1791 in the center of colonial Guadalajara, Mexico, was a hospital for the people and a home to orphans, the elderly, the poor and handicapped.

All of its many courtyards are planted with ever-bearing fruit trees to feed the sick and hungry.



FALLEN FRUIT de HOSPICIO CABAÑAS este mapa es una plantilla para el uso público. Iconoxea sus frutes! GUADALAJARA, MEXICO

# FALLEN FRUIT FRA CHRISTIANIA for mere information, besog fallenfruit.org. Ler dine frugter at kende! COPENHAGEN, DENMARK



Christiana, on the outskirts of Copenhagen, is part of a decommissioned military base. In the early 1970s, socialist radicals declared the area free from government control and seceded from the country of Denmark.





FALLEN FRUIT PUBLIC FRUIT MAPS by David Burns, Matias Viegener and Austin Young

Fallen Fruit's Public Fruit Maps create a treasure hunt for public fruit that grows in, or hangs over, public space. These three maps are walking guides to neighborhoods that demonstrate ideas of goodness, generosity and abundance; free fruit lines the streets of the neighborhoods in the most populous cities of the world.

These three maps have another history: they reference social spaces born from communal ideals. Sharing has always been considered a way of life in these magical neighborhoods.

There are more maps at fallenfruit.org

please respect private property

take only what you need

say 'hi' to strangers

share your food

take a friend

go by foot



# **FALLEN FRUIT OF CHAUTAUQUA**



Chautauqua is just outside of Boulder, Colorado. A summer retreat for educated women in the 1890s, it became part of the largest educational movement in the history of the United States of America.



# **FOOD**: security

All sorrows are less with bread. — Miguel de Cervantes Saavedra

Across language, class, religion, and race, food is a connection we all share. For some, eating is a benign daily ritual. For others it's a point of activism. For still others it's an expression of sensuality or a touchstone of identity. For too many, food is a point of contention. Nearly nine hundred million people in the world suffer from malnutrition and hunger, 200 million of them children.<sup>1</sup>

This chapter's maps explore a range of issues tied to food security, or access to adequate food. If I'm food secure, I don't have to think about where my next meal is going to come from, and face no challenges in procuring sustenance. If I'm food insecure, I don't have enough food to eat, or perhaps I must rely on emergency food resources, lack funds to purchase food, or don't have easy access to food shops. This chapter maps issues of food security, posits some potential solutions to food insecurity, and shines light on organizations working for food justice.

As we barrel towards a projected nine billion people in the world by 2050, pundits and policymakers continue to ask whether food production can keep pace with our growing numbers and changing food preferences.<sup>2</sup> Time will tell. One truth is plain: confronting these challenges, and keeping our world healthy and fed, will require serious engagement with the interrelations between class, history, economic development, and the health of our evergrowing population. Global Imbalance of the Availability of Nutritious Food

Lucia Argüelles & Jennifer Lara

# Global Imbalance of the Availability of Nutritious Food

While in the rich countries obesity can reach 50% prevalence, the Global South still faces the scourge of famine. Undernourishment and obesity are caused by the inefficiency of the global mechanisms producing and distributing food. Both phenomena have disastrous consequences for the societies who suffer from them.

## HUNGER

An adequate nutrition is essential for economic growth, good health and physical and cognitive development. It requires a diverse diet including staple foods, vegetables, fruits and proteins.

Most of the world's undernourished people live in developing countries. Two thirds live in just seven countries: Bangladesh, China, the Democratic Republic of the Congo, Ethiopia, India, Indonesia and Pakistan.

The reasons behind hunger are historical and political. It is well known that hunger is not caused by food shortage: yearly food production could feed 12,000,000,000 people.

SOME EXAMPLES OF DIFFERENCES ON FOOD CONSUMPTION AMONG COUNTRIES (kg/person*year)			
Barley	Saudi Arabia Ethiopia 208.4 16.9		
Oranges	Japan Philipines 11.6 1.5		
Tomatoes	Australia Madagascar 26.5 2.3		
Cheese	Uruguay Namibia 11.3 1		
Poultry Meat	U.S.A 49.4	Gambia 3.6	
Bovine Meat	Chile 20.7	Guatemala 5.7	

# OBESITY

On the other hand, obesity is a result of diets which are characterized by energy-dense, nutrient poor foods that are high in fat, sugar and salt.

Obesity is a major contribution to heart disease, stroke, diabetes and cancer. It is a well-known phenomenon in developed countries which is increasing in the developing world.

Worldwide obesity has more than doubled since 1980. There are more obese adults in the world today than undernourished.

An unregulated food market with cheap unhealthy food and an uncontrolled marketing industry stimulating consumption are some of the reasons behind obesity.

Undernourishment* (%)	Obesity** (%)	
<b>5</b> - 20	5 - 10	
20.1 - 35	0 10.1 - 25	
35.1 - 50	25.1 - 40	
> 50	> 40	

\* Prevalence of undernourishment in total population (2005-07).

\*\* Prevalence of Obesity (BMI  $\ge 25$  kg/m ) in total adult population (aged 15+) (2010).

Sources: Undernourishment data from The state of food insecurity in the world (FAO, 2009). Obesity data from WHO By Lucia Argüelles (Author, researcher) & Jennifer Lara (Cartographer) Land For Sale: The New Trend of Commercial Pressures on Land in Sub-Saharan Africa

Lucia Argüelles & Jennifer Lara



Y



#### The climate, financial

and energy crisis which are taking place during the first decades of the 21st century boosts the interest on land and resources. Those resources (oil, minerals, wood) are often found outside the national borders. Another important resource are agricultural products, such as food or biofuels.

The dimension of this trend remains unclear due to the secrecy surrounding the land concessions, but there is no doubt about the large scale of this global phenomenon. The new trend of investors seeking land in foreign countries has attracted much attention during the last 5 years. This attention is partly due to the social conflicts or environmental burdens associated to these land acquisitions, which deservedly are often referred to as land grabs.

#### **FOOD VERSUS FUEL DEBATE**

The high pressure on land was a major cause of the food crisis in 2007/2008, when food prices peaked, decreasing the food access of millions. Biofuels played an important role in this crisis: millions of hectares were dedicated to energy crops rather than food. Consequently, the availability of food decreased and the prices soared.

Biofuels also hampers the access to food directly; with investors seeking land in the global South the evictions of locals are common. Subsistence farming is substituted by industrialized agriculture and food harvests are replaced with non edible energy crops.

According to Vandana Shiva "from the richest countries in the North to the poorest countries in the South, food security is being forgotten in order to keep the energy infrastructure well-oiled".

Threats to Indigenous Food Traditions in North America

Annita Lucchesi

# Threats to Indigenous Food Traditions in North America

#### St. Lawrence Island

Marine mammals the Yup'ik traditionally hunt now have up to 280x the US EPA's PCB ingestion cap, due to wind-carried pollution. PCBs are linked to lesions, lowered immune responses, infertility, cancers, and cognitive disabilities.



#### **Bristol Bay**

Bristol Bay lies near a proposed copper and gold mine spanning 20sq mi of its watershed. The mine's holding ponds will hold up to 10 billion tons of waste, which could destroy salmon populations with what scientists have claimed will be an inevitable leak.



#### **Kuskowim River**



resulted in devastating river closures, creating what some have called a "food security panic." This season twenty-four Native fishers have been arrested for

violating the law in hopes o feeding their families. "We are going to live here. We ar

going to fish here. And it's not going to stop. It's our way of life. - Mike Williams (Akiak Yup'ik)



for geoducks for millennia, but ocean acidification is leteriorating the mussels and rapidly killing them off.

#### Klamath River



"The assertion of tribal water rights and sovereignty is key not only to salmon recovery, but also the reservation of Native cultures." -- Leonard Masten

Dams on the upper Klamath have resulted n massive fish kills (as high as 68,000 in 2002) on the lower Klamath, where the Karuk, Yurok, & Hupa peoples fish. Though salmon populations are rising, regulation of the dams is lacking and toxic algae blooms as well as proposed policy changes threaten the river's health.

## **California Coast**

Natives are banned from subsistence harvesting foods like kelp & mussels under the Marine Life Protection Act, and have been arrested for doing so.

# Tewa Pueblo

Pollution from nearby uranium mining has had devastating effects on regional wildlife, and many Southwest tribes struggle to maintain hunting traditions in the face of increasing scarcity.



"Animals have died off or left, the water is no good. This is not the world that we know and rely on. It's contaminated our culture." -- Kathy Sanhez (Tewa Pueblo)



"Our food is literally our culture. It's not an option to change our diet. But the joy of a successful hunt and sharing the food has been replaced with people wondering, will this harm my family?" -- Vi Waghiyi (Yup'ik)

"It is a matter of systematic discrimination and structural violence when people are denied access to the resources they need to maintain their own indigenous food traditions, cuisines, and diets." -- Devon Peña, The Acequia Institute

## Lake Athabasca

Runoff from abandoned uranium mines, pulp mills, and agricultural sites now pollutes the Athabasca River, which is also high in toxic industrial contaminants from the nearby tar sands. Cree,

Dene, and Métis peoples traditionally fish in these waters, but are now finding high numbers of fish with tumors, lesions, and other deformaties.







disabilities, have recently been found in the trees. The cadmium is from 62 nearby chemical plants, known as Chemical Valley.

"What makes us who we are is our connection to the land and the ability to live off it. We have lost that. We end up completely reforming to North American society. We're a dying culture." -- Ron Plain (Anishinaabe)

## Lake Superior

Djibwe peoples have been cultivating manoomin (wild rice) for millennia, but due to climate change, recent harvests have become ncreasingly scarce, with some being canceled altogether.



# **About This Map**

cedar bark as a tea and

medicine, but high levels of

cadmium, a metal known to

cause cancer and learning

Indigenous peoples across North America are fighting to maintain their ways of life, and access to traditional foods continues to be compromised and threatened. Though it cannot be exhaustive, this map offers a small glimpse of the array of ongoing issues nations are facing in preserving ancestral culinary traditions.

es: Alaska Dispatch, Environmental & Food Justice (blog), Indian Country Today edia Network, Klamath Media, Longhouse Media, The Tyee, Think Mexican



Food Insecurity & Indigenous Communities in Canada's North

Annita Lucchesi

# Food Insecurity & Indigenous Communities in Canada's North

Though indigenous peoples have fought for equitable access to healthy foods since the imposition of colonial rule, 2010 was a landmark moment in contemporary struggles of this nature for indigenous Northern communities. The replacement of existing Food Mail programs with Nutritions North, a subsidy program, had many worried about escalating food prices, and a year later, a United Nations Right to Food Envoy named the conditions in which Northern Natives were living "desperate." Soon after, Northern indigenous people created what is now the internationally-known grassroots organization Feeding My Family, which is dedicated to protesting food insecurity and hunger in Northern communities.



Canadian Food Networks: Propagating the Food Movement

Charles Z Levkoe & Claudia Dávila



#### 01 FarmFolk/CityFolk VANCOUVER, BRITISH COLUMBIA Supports community-based sustainable food systems by protecting food-growing lands, public education, advocacy, and alliance

#### 02 Healthy Eating and Active Living (HEAL)

building

NORTHERN BRITISH COLUMBIA Combats chronic disease through network building in the North

03 Hinton Community Garden Society HINTON, ALBERTA Runs an all-season, organic community garden and two 06 The North End Food re-purposed greenhouses

04 Sustainable, Equitable, Local and Regional System for Food CENTRAL ALBERTA Maps food resources to build an action plan for a more equitable and environmentally sound

#### food system 05 Muskoday Organic Growers Co-op MUSKODAY FIRST NATION SASKATCHEWAN Works with youth and elders to reclaim First Nations food sovereignty by emphasizing indigenous

agricultural heritage

Security Network WINNIPEG, MANITOBA

Supports existing initiatives and provides education and resources to low income communities 07 Harvest Moon Society

CLEARWATER, MANITOBA Supports rural environments and sustainable agriculture through an annual festival, a local food-buying club,

#### and a rural learning centre 08 Eat Local Sudbury Coop SUDBURY, ONTARIO Operates a retail outlet and

community working space to build relationships

between eaters and producers

#### 09 The Stop Community Food Centre TORONTO, ONTARIO

Offers a comprehensive approach to addressing food issues through food access, food skills, education, and engagement

FarmStart GUELPH, ONTARIO Supports the next generation of farmers to develop economically viable and ecological agricultural enterprises. through training, market

research, and resources

11 Santropol Roulant MONTREAL, QUEBEC Operates a community

hub providing healthy food using urban agriculture

#### 12 Équiterre

MONTREAL, QUEBEC Encourages ecological and equitable choices through ecological horticulture, transportation, fair trade, and responsible consumption

## 13 Landless Gardeners

FREDERICTON, NEW BRUNSWICK Cultivates organic vegetables communally on donated lawns of private landowners

#### 14 The Ecology Action Centre's Food Action Committee HALIFAX, NOVA SCOTIA Increases collective food access and self-reliance though research and action projects

5 Root Cellars Rock! NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR Celebrates the province's unique agricultural heritage by storing the harvest in traditional ways

6 Yukon Hospital Traditional Diet Program WHITEHORSE YUKON Works with local hunters.

#### outfitters, and conservation officers to provide traditional foods to Indigenous patients

17 Inuvik Community

Greenhouse INUVIK. NORTHWEST TERRITORIES Runs a community hub providing fresh ecological produce along with events. information, and resources

18 Nunavut Country Food Market IQALUIT, NUNAVUT Connects producers with consumers by giving nunters a venue to sell their catch directly to other community members

## Which Came First, Food Policy or Food Hub?

Alicia Fisher, Gabriele Ciciurkaite, Benjamin Golder



hub		council
	2012	
		۲
	2010	
		۲
	2005	
		۲
	2000	
		۲
	1990	
		۲
	1960	
		•
	1900	
		۲
	1840	

# Which Came First, Food Policy or Food Hub?

The map illustrates the spaces of influence where food policy councils and local food hubs operate in potential cooperation or separation. Four spatial patterns emerge: dense council-hub areas, sparse council-hub areas, saturated council areas, or saturated hub areas.

The first Food Policy Councils (FPC) in the U.S. started roughly 30 years ago, while most councils have popped up in the last decade. Food Policy Councils are coordinated through state or local government or grassroots efforts and collaborate with a range of stakeholders to shape policy and to increase access to healthy food in local communities. One of the priority areas in FPC work is to expand the local food hub network.

A food hub as defined by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) is a centrally located facility with a business management structure facilitating the aggregation, storage, processing, distribution, and/or marketing of locally/regionally produced food products. A hub-like space for vendors to sell products can be traced through the physical market structures in the U.S. that date back to the 19th century and are still in operation today. Today, this space is both physical and virtual and includes a range of strategies to distribute local foods. Classifying a Food Hub is part of the more recent and growing interest in "Know Your Farmer, Know Your Food."

*Alicia Fisher, Author and Researcher* Sources: Community Food Security Coalition, USDA, US Census 2010

Alicia Fisher, Author and Researcher Gabriele Ciciurkaite, Researcher Benjamin Golder, Illustrator

## Working For Justice Along the Food Chain

John de Goede & Alex Tarr





The Food Chain Workers Alliance is a coalition of worker-based organizations whose members plant, harvest, process, pack, transport, prepare, serve, and sell food, organizing to improve wages and working conditions for all workers along the food chain. a full report on food worker organizations is available at www.foodchainworkers.org sources: Food Chain Worker Alliance Research catography & design by JOHN DE GOEDE with ALEX TARR



Farmers Markets: Accessible to All?

Margaret Raimann

# FARMERS MARKETS: ACCESSIBLE TO ALL?

Farmers markets across the United States are increasingly offering opportunities for lower-income citizens to benefit from fresh, local, and healthy food options. Those who qualify for food stamps, or specifically the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), are benefitting from their neighborhood markets that accept the program. This geographic representation of the acceptance of SNAP at farmers markets nationwide showcases metropolitan areas with 500,000+ total households (as defined by the US Census Bureau) in which the program is both needed and utilized.

By: Margaret Raimann

METROPOLITAN AREAS

	1	DETROIT	16.5% households enrolled in SNAP 20.8% markets accept SNAP
	2	PORTLAND	15.87 households registered in SNAP 35.47 markets accept SNAP
lds)	3	PROVIDENCE	15 17 households registered in SNAP
usehol	4	CLEVELAND	147, households registered in SNAP 34%, markets accept SNAP
total ho	5	NASHVILLE	13.9% households registered in SNAP 5% markets accept SNAP
(by 1	6	ΜΙΑΜΙ	13.8% households registered in SNAP 3% markets accept SNAP



The Rise of Foodbanks in England

Mark A Green & Hannah Lambie-Mumford

# The rise of Foodbanks in England

## Food Handed Out (Foodbank; kg)

- 0 712
- **O** 713 4103
- **4104 20224**
- 0 20225 96869

## Unemployment Rate (2011, %)

0.8 - 5.4
5.5 - 8.0
8.1 - 11.0
11.1 - 16.4

0	40	80	160 Miles
⊢		<b>⊢  </b>	+ + + -
0	65	130	260 Kilometers

Unlike the United States and Canada, where food banking has had a historically high profile, this has not been the case in England. However, the last eight years have seen the rise of the country's single largest food banking initiative and with it, increasing attention on the work of food banks. Since being established in 2004, the charitable food banking franchise – Foodbank – run by the Trussell Trust has grown at a phenomenal rate. Starting out with two projects in the South West of England, there are now 221 launched throughout the whole of England. Last year – between April 2011 and March 2012 – Foodbanks fed 110,291 people in England alone. This map visualises the geography of Food banks in England, charting their pattern against unemployment rates – an important factor impacting on food security. From this map, the growth up to March 2012 appears to be uneven both socially and spatially. Foodbanks are localised charitable initiatives, aimed to assist people in need in their communities. They are not an official national response and as such their emergence has not necessarily followed in line with patterns of poverty and inequality. The proliferation of this initiative and the rising numbers of people assisted by Foodbanks highlights the pressing need for comprehensive policy responses to the issue of hunger across England today.

8



Securing Food and Frontiers in Okinawa, Japan

Emma Tome



2012 EMMA TOME

## Collecting Food Surplus in Northeastern Italy

Giuliano Petrarulo

— next pages —

Another Pampa Is Possible!!!

Iconoclasistas





## iconoclasistas

In 2008 we began to organize **collective mapping workshops**, encouraging collaborative work on maps and cartographies by designing and releasing a series of tools that make it possible to share knowledge that can then be used for the critical visualization of the most pressing local problems.

# COLLECTIVE MAP\* OF THE ARGENTINE HEART OF THE SOY MODEL (2010) **ANOTHER PANPA IS POSSIBLE!!!**

Sickness, desertification, water contamination and wealth for a select few, in a region that contains more than 50% of the Argentine population and that is uniting to resist "soy-ization"

More than half of the arable land in Argentina is planted exclusively with transgenic soy due to high profit margins driven by international demand. The profits generated from soy cultivation benefit only transnational agribusinesses, large producers, oil companies and producers of biodiesel and livestock feed (joined as the Sociedad Rural Argentina, Confederaciones Rurales Argentinas, etc.) who together own 78% of the land. They exploit a rural labor force that is the worst paid and is subject to appalling working conditions (of the 1.3 million persons who work in these fields only 325,000 are not in debt). The concentration of land into a few hands has meant that in the last ten years, a great number of people have been uprooted from their land and forced to migrate to miserable shantytowns in urban centers.

In resistance to this model of mono-culture, contamination and the placing at risk of both food sovereignty and small producers, the actions of indigenous peoples and campesinos stand out. These include the Campesino Movement of Santiago del Estero (MOCASE-VC), the United Campesino Organization of Northern Córdoba (APENOC), the Traslasierra Campesino Union (UCATRAS), the Western Mountain Campesino Union (UCOS) and the Campesino Union of the North (UCAN), as well as dozens of neighborhood groups organized against crop dusting. Collectively, they struggle to create another way of life through organization and emancipatory practices.

# Food ≠ gasoline

The production of biofuels, such as **bioethanol** (sugar cane) and **biodiesel** (soy, corn and sunflower), is a misled solution to the scarcity of fossil fuels and global warming. Besides not being able to satisfy the demand for energy production, they lead to deforestation and the rising cost of food. **Argentina produces more than 10% of the world supply of biodiesel**, concentrating 85% of its productive capacity in the province of Santa Fe. Production increased this year due to a law that forces oil companies to include at least 5% biofuel in all gasoline.

BOLIVIA BOLIVIA ARGENTINA URUGUAY Enlarged Area of soy cultivated land Mercosuriss

Key



This map is the result of the systematization of the following collective mapping workshops (2008-2009): Pañuelos en Rebeldía /Buenos Aires. Escuela de Ciencias de la Información y Casa 13 / Córdoba. Facultad de Ciencias Económicas y Centro Cultural La Toma / Rosario. Unión de Asambleas Ciudadanas / Córdoba. Tandil, Olavarría, San Andrés de Giles, La Plata / Buenos Aires. More info: http://iconoclasistas.com.ar/



Regional Food Resilience: Mapping Potential Adaptations to San Francisco Bay Area's Food System

N Claire Napawan & Ellen Burke

# **REGIONAL FOOD RESILIENCE:** MAPPING POTENTIAL ADAPTATIONS N. CLAIRE NAPAWAN & ELLEN BURKE (AUTHORS) TO SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA'S FOOD SYSTEM

This map considers a basic element of food resilience (the ability for people to access food) from two perspectives: 1) the ability to grow food at home in relationship to lot and home size and 2) the ability to obtain food at a community grocery store. It speculates a change in residential and-use for urban food production and a predominantly water-based food distribution network at the regional scale. Water transportation is four times more efficient than land based; in a scenario of limited fuel resources, a water transit system could become a key SAN PABLO BAY SUISUN BAY strategy of resilient food Selby Port infrastructure.

Concord Port

#### Using a transect of

AREA DEVELOPMENT PATTERNS ommunity grocery store four urbanized areas in the San Francisco Bay Area, the following criteria related to food resiliency are mapped: productive capacity of private home open space, distance to a full service supermarket, and fuel neces-SAN FRANCISCO BAY sary to deliver food to full service supermarket using a water-based ortof distribution network. The map asks - how much food can these communities grow at home? What portion of the annual food needs does that repre-Port of sent? Could a person walk to a store if they do not have access to a car, or to Stockton fuel? Are these communities advantageously sited if a water-based distribution network were utilized? The map seeks to create an open reading that is, rather than prescribe which the most resilient community is, it allows the reader to sift through the competing factors and ort of Oakland decide for themselves. The map may also create more questions than it answers, broadening the complexity of thinking on the issue of food To Interresilience and the built environment. The goal is to inspire planners and Port of San national designers to consider food resiliency as a factor in the design and location Francisco of new communities. Hunter's Point SAN FRANCISCO BAY PROTOTYPICAL RESIDENTIAL LOT USAGE<sup>1</sup> 1,376 sq 128 sm 3,720 sq ft 2,033 sq f Port of 346 sn 189 sn Redwood City SAN FRANCISCO 66% 32 gal 1.1 mi MOUNTAIN HOUSE 70% 103 gal 7.5 mi OAKLAND DUBLIN 104% 28 gal 2 mi 190% 58 gal 2.9 mi established 1848 established 1852 established 1960 established 2003 121 | 1.77 km 106 l 3.2 km 220 I 4.67 km 390 l 12 km population 805,235 population 390,724 population 46,036 population 9.675

14.9 sq mi (38.59 sq km)

0.16 acre (0.06 hectare) typical lot size

78.0 sq mi (202 sq km)

0.09 acre (0.04 hectare) typical lot size

46.7 sq mi (120.95 sq km)

0.06 acre (0.02 hectare) typical lot size

Ports

case study development

water-based shipping lines

100% food needs met on-site

ton of food transported

1 mile (1.61 kilometers) of travel between residence and

10 gallons (39 litres) of fuel per

footprint

grazing land

farmland

3.2 sq mi (8.29 sq km)

0.16 acre (0.06 hectare) typical lot size

To Port of Sacramento Local Food in Santa Clara County

Brian Fulfrost



# LOCAL FOOD IN SANTA CLARA COUNTY



# Local Food

As a source of fresh, healthy, locally grown food, Healthy Food Resources (HFR) are increasingly being promoted as important community features that can support public health, reduce environmental pollution, and promote economic vitality and self sufficiency. However, not all communities in Santa Clara County have equal access to HFRs.

Low-income households face barriers to access when considering such factors as location, service, affordability, and policy. Such barriers contribute to public health inequities experienced by lowincome communities and communities of color.

Source: Greenbelt Alliance (2012); American Community Survey (06-10); BFA (2009); Public Health law and Policy (2009)

Percent of Low-Income Households within Walking Distance (1/2 mile or less) of Local Food



# At-Risk Land

The At Risk map showing likelihood of development within 10 to 30 years is derived by directly comparing the pressure to build on open spaces against the policies enacted to keep them preserved. In Santa Clara County; over 63,400 acres of land are at risk.

Fortunately, more people are working to sustain and enhance the county's agricultural heritage in both the greenbelt as well as urban farms in cities. The county has begun a Food Systems Alliance to focus on improving access to healthy food and helping local agriculture become more viable. Modified Retail Food Environment (mRFEI) in Santa Clara County

Brian Fulfrost

# MODIFIED RETAIL FOOD ENVIRONMENT (mRFEI) IN SANTA CLARA COUNTY





# Healthy Food Environment

The food environment includes:

- The physical presence of food that affects a person's diet,
- A person's proximity to food store locations,
- The distribution of food stores, food service, and any physical entity by which food may be obtained, or
- A connected system that allows access to food.

Planning for improvement in overall community health should include access to affordable and healthy food. Growing evidence demonstrates a strong relationship between our health and the built environment.

# m R F E I

The modified Retail Food Environment Index (mRFEI) measures the number of healthy food retailers as a percentage of the total number of healthy and unhealthy retailers in a given area. For this indicator, healthy food retailers include supermarkets, supercenters, and smaller produce stores. Less healthy food retailers include convenience stores, fast food, and small coner stores.

Strategies to improve the community food environment include increased access and availability to healthier food retailers. The mRFEI is one of the tools used to promote "Healthy Planning" in addition to tools that promote active transporation and mixed land use patterns.

Sources: Center for Disease Conrol and Prevention (CDC), California Nutrition Network (2011); USDA (2011).



Baltimore City Food Swamps

Amanda Behrens, Julia Simons, James Harding, Michael Milli

— next pages —

Starving for Fresh Food: Food Deserts in Los Angeles Drowning in Fast Food: Food Swamps in Los Angeles

Kae Yamane

# Baltimore City Food Swamps wherever healthy food is lacking, unhealthy food tends to be abundant

## what is a food swamp?

A food swamp is a place where unhealthy foods are more readily available than healthy foods. (Unhealthy foods include those that are dense in calories, high in sodium, and high in sugar.) Food swamps typically exist in food deserts, where there are limited options for purchasing healthy foods. On this map, food swamps are represented by the dense clusters of circles and triangles. For example, a food swamp might be an area where there is a predominance of small corner stores and carry-outs, but no healthy food sources, such as supermarkets or farmers markets.

## what is a food desert?

A food desert is a low-income neighborhood that lacks easy access to healthy, affordable food. Because healthy, affordable food is usually found in supermarkets, most food deserts lack proximity to a supermarket. In Baltimore, we developed a more specific definition of "food desert" was developed that includes four factors.\* On this map, food deserts are represented by the red-shaded areas.



# Food Desert Corner Store (422) Fast Food Restaurant (138) Carry Out Restaurant (625) mile

\*Food Desert: An area where the distance to a supermarket is more than 1/4 mile, the median household income is at or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, over 40% of households have no vehicle available, and the average Healthy Food Availability Index score for supermarkets, convenience and corner stores is low.

Contributors: Amanda Behrens & Julia Simons (authors), James Harding (cartographer), Michael Milli (designer) Data sources: American Community Survey, Baltimore City Health Department, Center for a Livable Future, ESRI



mdfoodsystemmap.org jhsph.edu/clf

JOHNS HOPKINS Center for a Livable Future



# **POINT DATA NOTE**

Large Chain Grocery Refers to supermarket or grocery store chain with at least ten stores.

Fast Food Chain Restaurant Refers to quick service restaurants with six or more locations.

Data points represent locations of all California retail food establishments listed through February 2011 in the California Department of Public Health's California Nutrition Network database.

# **DROWNING IN FAST FOOD**

## **NEIGHBORHOODS**

These maps use neighborhood boundaries as defined in the Los Angeles Times "Mapping L.A." project.

The strong neighborhood affiliations historically formed by Los Angeles residents, with their unique socioeconomic and cultural identities, may play some role in eating and exercise habits within each community.

A selection of neighborhoods are named here for orientation purposes.



Sources: The Los Angeles Times, California Nutrition Network, Community Health Councils

## San Francisco Urban Agricultural Projects

Noah Christman, David Peters, Terra N Tice, Eli Zigas



Map designed by Noah Christman and David Peters, formatted for this volume by Terra Tice, with Eli Zigas. Sources: San Francisco Recreation and Parks Department, San Francisco Garden Resource Organization, Presidio Trust, San Francisco Parks Alliance, and Elizabeth Li. To view sites on an interactive map and read SPUR's full report on urban agriculture in San Francisco, visit www.spur.org/publicharvest

Land Availability in New York City

Urban Design Lab



# LAND AVAILABILITY IN NEW YORK CITY

Despite being the most densely populated large metro area in the U.S., there are thousands of vacant or otherwise underutilized sites in New York City. The vacant land shown consists of parcels with no active use or structures, and presents the most obvious opportunities for transformation through urban agriculture into productive spaces that serves their surrounding community. For the purposes of this map some sites deemed environmentally sensitive were not included, and while not all of these remaining parcels are suitable for agriculture, there is ample evidence of the potential for this activity to expand and flourish in New York City.

Cultivate the Commons, Urban Agriculture's Potential in Oakland, California

Nathan McClintock & Jenny Cooper



There are 1,201 acres (486 hectares) of arable public land in Oakland, California. 830 acres (486 hectares) of this land has a slope under of 30 %. Devoting even 100 acres (40.5 hectares) to urban agriculture could supply the city with as much as 5 % of its current vegetable consumption levels.





• organization gardens



Nathan McClintock & Jenny Cooper



Growing Food and Community in West Oakland

Marek K Jakubowski

# Growing food and community in West Oakland



City Slicker Farms' mission is to empower West Oakland community members to meet their basic need for fresh, healthy food by creating sustainable, high-yield urban farms and backyard gardens. Since its inception in West Oakland in 2001, City Slicker Farms' programs have addressed food insecurity in the most fundamental ways: helping people grow food where they live and access fresh food in places where it did not exist. This work doesn't merely transform broken food systems; by advocating for policies that foster health and empowerment, by providing training and educational opportunities, and by cultivating underutilized, blighted urban spaces - turning them into places of civic pride, they also transform communities.







# **FOOD**: exploration

You are what what you eat eats. — Michael Pollan

We've partnered with Mission:Explore to include a number of their interactive food-exploration missions aimed at engaging the next generation of guerrilla cartographers. Big and little kids alike will relish time spent completing these food-related challenges—answering questions about foraged-food sources, considering cuts of meat, and taking on off-the-map tasks like growing brea mold and baking cookies.

By encouraging us to explore culture and tradition, these mapping activities ask us to rethink our notions about what is edible and how we experience food. They also make us think solidly about what we know of our local food system. Along the way, readers who indulge in this interactive part of the atlas are sure to learn a thing or two about cartography as well as arrive at a few new answers about the age-old question, "What's for dinner?"

*Mission:Explore Food* is created by The Geography Collective. This special extract has been crafted by the Collective's Helen Steer, Tom Morgan-Jones, and Daniel Raven-Ellison.



Seven guerrilla geography challenges of the 159 from Mission:Explore Food, a book by The Geography Collective and City Farmers. Explore the food system with Grow, Harvest, Cook, Eat, Waste and Soil chapters. Discover more at www.missionexplore.net. Complete each mission starting from #MEF042 then check it off and tweet us!

# 11 MEF042 Do a marathon harvest

Only buy food that's been grown, harvested and produced within a marathon (26.218 miles or 42,195 metres) of your home.



119

What foods are inside the allowed area?

What foods are outside the allowed area?

Which shops are best for sourcing local foods?



••

# ♯ MEF046 Learn your cuts

Ask your local butcher about the different cuts of meat on animals. Is there a big difference in their taste, texture, smell, healthiness or appearance? With the help of your butcher label the different parts of these other animals, just like has been done for Deary Deer below.





1 MEF053 Culinary cartography

Draw a map of where your local free food supplies are.





121

# 11 MEF058 Cut country cookies

Make and bake cookies that look like countries.

100g butter or margarine, softened 100g soft brown sugar 100g self-raising flour 1 tsp vanilla extract 70g oats l egg Extras - raisins, chocolate chips, chopped nuts...

1. Set your oven to 170°C/

350°F/gas mark 4.

3. Stir in the flour, oats and extras (if using) to form a soft dough. Add some more flour if it's too sloppy. like real or imaginary in the oven. 6. Bake for around 15 minutes

and let the biscuits cool for 5 minutes before tucking in.

2. Cream the butter and sugar in a bowl, then mix in the eggs and vanilla extract.

4. Shape the cookie dough countries and place them on a lined baking sheet with room to spread out when they are

Serving suggestion: use your cookies to demonstrate continental drift.

# # MEF100 Map your taste

Explore your tongue with sweet, sour, bitter, salty and umami (savory) tastes. Try to create a map of where the different tastes are strongest.





Make your mapping more scientific and ask lots of friends to do this experiment. Do your taste buds agree?





No map is 100% accurate. Can you spot anything missing or wrong with this one?

# 11 MEF122 Mold mapping

Leave a piece of bread on the windowsill and draw the mold pattern that develops over the week.





125



# **FOOD**: *identities*

Tell me what you eat, and I will tell you who you are. — Anthelme Brillat-Savarin

All maps in *Food: an Atlas* were provided by cartographers who seek to expose the truth about what (and how) we eat. In no chapter are the maps more personal—or more conceptual—than in this one. Where preceding chapters have focused on how humans produce, transport, share (or don't share) food—about how we create food—this chapter is about how food creates us.

Humans find community through what is eaten or not eaten, in the ways we grow, prepare, and celebrate food. Hence, these maps conceptualize food through memory, identity, and relationship to the landscape. Food as a touchstone of the human experience. These maps forge meaning by focusing on the fusion of food and place. They demonstrate the beauty of our interconnectedness.

# **GLOBAL GASTRONOMY** An unofficial map of national dishes from *Meatpaper* magazine

RESEARCH, TEXT, AND CARTOGRAPHY BY SOPHIA HUSSAIN ART DIRECTION AND CARTOGRAPHY BY SASHA WIZANSKY

THE TASK OF COMPILING the national dishes of the world yields only one conclusive finding: that it is impossible. But the potential to create a map showing patterns of meat dishes in traditional cuisines across the globe was too alluring to deny, so we present you with the first-ever unofficial map of national dishes of the world.

What makes a national dish is ambiguous: Is it a staple food (millet, Chad), or a heritage food with limited appeal beyond its nation of origin (hákarl, fermented shark, Iceland)? Is it simply the most popular dish eaten in the country, or the most iconic? Does a national dish represent the interest of tourism bureaus (bandeja paisa, Colombia), or the voice of the people? Is it a reflection of postcolonial mixing and migration (currywurst, Germany), or a dish that a country can claim to have conceived? Many people have proposed that the true national dish of England is not Roast Beef and Yorkshire Pudding, but Chicken Tikka Masala. In countries such as Mexico and India, regional cooking dictates the plate. And what claims can be made about a national dish in a country afflicted by food scarcity? There are few officially recorded national dishes (Grenada's Oil Down is one); the rest are hotly contested within countries and among neighbors, online forums, and Wikipedia pages alike.

Though our findings are unscientific and potentially controversial, we hope our map inspires hungry explorers to venture into new territories.



COLOR KEY (IN ORDER OF FREQUENCY): MEATLESS BEEF SHEEP CHICKEN COMBINATION FISH PORK SHELLFISH DUCK GOAT GUINEA PIG FROG RABBIT REINDEER SHARK

#### NATIONAL DISH INDEX

AFGHANISTAN steamed rice, lentils, raisins carrots, and lamb

ALBANIA baked lamb with yogurt

#### ALGERIA

small pellets of semolina traditionally served with vegetables, spice sauce, and meat, or as a meatless side with onds, and sugar

ANDORRA country stew

ANGOLA Muamba de galinha palm nuts, chicken, fish, peanuts, rice assava, bananas, hot pepp

ANTIGUA AND BARBUDA cornmeal and salt beet

ARGENTINA beef cooked over an open fire

ARMENIA chicken wheat porridge AUSTRALIA

Minced meat and gravy pie AUSTRIA

pounded veal cutlets breaded and lightly

A7FRBAIIAN lamb-stuffed grape leaves

BAHAMAS Crack conch with peas and rice deep-fried conch BAHRAIN

spices, basmati rice, meat, and vegetables BANGLADESH

rice with ilish, or hilsa fish BARBADOS

cornmeal and okra with flying fish BELARUS

potato pancakes BELGIUM

mussels and French fries BELIZE

boiled ground staples such as cassava, sweet potatoes, plantains, and yam added to fish, pig tail, and boiled eggs covered in a tomato sauce

BENIN deep-fried peanut sticks

BHUTAN Ema dat chili peppers and cheese BOLIVIA

chicken in spicy sauce BOSNIA AND HERZGOVINA

stew of larger cuts of meat and vegetables, usually containing beef, lamb, cabbage, potato, tomatoes, and whole spices

BOTSWANA boiled, pounded meat of beef or goat

BRAZIL bean stew with beef and pork BRUNEI

sago palm starch BULGARIA

stew of beef, tomato, mushrooms, olive and rice

**BURKINA FASO** "fat rice," made with chicken

#### CAMBODIA

steamed curried fish with coconut milk CAMEROON

bitterleaf soup with peanuts, shrimp, and salt fish CANADA

French fries covered in cheese curds and brown grav

CAPE VERDE slow-cooked stew of corn, beans, and fish

CENTRAL AFRICAN REPUBLIC plantains cassava or vams pounded into a sticky dough and served with a seasoned meat (often chicken) and vegetable sauce

millet CHILE corn and meat pie

CHAD

CHINA Peking duck fattened roast duck dipped in sugar and garlic sauce

COLOMBIA plate of beef, chorizo, pork, beans, white rice, fried egg, plantain, and avocado

CONGO, DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC OF THE fried chicken with red fruit around the seed of the African oil palm COSTA RICA

rice and beans COTE D'IVOIRE (see Central African Republic

CROATIA Istrian stew of pork and been

CUBA rice and beans

CYPRUS sailor's bean soup CZECH REPUBLIC

roast pork. dumplings, sauerkraut DENMARK

beef and pork meatballs DOMINICA seasoned and stewed frog legs

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC rice and beans with chicken ECUADOR

deep-fried guinea pig FGYPT

cooked and mashed fava beans served with olive oil, chopped parsley, onion, garlic, and lemon juice.

EL SALVADOR thick corn tortilla filled with cheese, refried beans, and cooked pork

ENGLAND sirloin roast beef with gravy and a savory pastry

EQUATORIAL GUINEA lima beans and tomatoes simmered in butter and stewed in corn FRITRFA

Curry stew ESTONIA

blood sausage, barley, pork, sauerkraut and boiled potatoes ETHIOPIA

chicken stew with red pepper paste

FINIAND

chicken with palm nut sauce

bread filled with cheese and eggs

steamed pork sausage covered in curry

groundnut (peanut) stew with chicken

baked layered dish of eggplant, minced

soup with cubed reindeer, onion, potato

salted meat (beef, pork, chicken),

dumplings, breadfruit, coconut milk

meat platter (chicken, chorizo, hot dog,

ham mortadella salami botifarra) with

stewed meats with brown sugar, cassare

(derived from cassava), cinnamon, and

boiled and fried cubes of pork with rice

plantains, refried beans, guacamole, and

stew of beef, vegetables, red onions, and

fermented rice and lentil crepe filled with

boiled vegetable salad with peanut sauce

a thick broth of slow-boiled lamb or

mutton with onions, potatoes, carrots

deep-fried balls of ground chickpeas

salt cod sautéed with ackee, a tropical

wheat noodle soup in meat or fish broth

lamb cooked in fermented dried vogurt

pasta with ragú (meat sauce.

often served with roast por

potato, fried onion, and spices

ash: Magyar for "herdsman'

tortillas, carne asada, chorizo, fried

meat, and tomatoes and spices with white

FRANCE

GABON

GEORGIA

GERMANY

ketchup

Nkate nl

GREECE

GREENLAND

GRENADA

GUATEMALA

GIIYANA

HAITI

hot peppers

and beans

HONDURAS

chilmol salsa

spices such as paprika

HUNGARY

ICELAND

ΙΝΠΙΔ

fermented shark

INDONESIA

dressing

rice and keba

roasted carn

IRELAND

and parsley

ISRAEL

ITALY

JAMAICA

ΙΔΡΔΝ

INRUAN

IRAN

IRAQ

and seasonings

callaloo (taro leaves)

vegetables and tortillas

GHANA

water, rve flour, powdered malted rve. nolasses, orange zest Pot-au-feu (pot in the fire)

stewing steak, root vegetables, and spices roasted mean

> KOREA, NORTH pickled and fermented vegetables with garlic, ginger, chili peppers, salt, and fish sauce

> > KOREA. SOUTH (see North Korea

KAZAKHSTAN

KENYA

based on seniority

KUWAIT spices, basmati rice, meat, and vegetable

a ritual meal of boiled mutton in which

arger parts of the sheep are d

LAOS Larb with sticky rice minced meat (often chicken) flavored with fish sauce, lime, chili, and mint LATVIA

cheese I FRANON

ground lamb, bulgur, and seasonings LIBERIA

(see Central African Republic) I IB YA

couscous mixed with onion, garbanzo beans, potato, jalapeño, chili pepper and lam

dumnlings LUXEMBOURG

I ITHUANIA

smoked neck of pork with broad beans

MACEDONIA, REPUBLIC OF beans in a skillet with onion and dry red

MADAGASCAR stew of beef and greens

MALALYSIA oconut milk rice (often served with meat) with anchovy

MALAWI cornmeal-based porridge eaten with side dishes of vegetables and a protein such as meat or peanu

MAI TA tuffat Tal-Fenek rabbit stew

MAURITANIA West African "rice fish" with tomato sauce MEXICO

Poblano chili pepper-based sauce with a variety of ground chilies, seeds, and spices MONACO

stuffed sandwich with egg, anchovies MONGOLIA

steamed, filled pockets with minced muttor

MONTENEGRO Kačamak cornmeal

MOROCCO

braised lamb or chicken with spices and vegetables, cooked in a clay pot MOZAMBIQUE

Frango a portugues Portuguese chicker MYANMAR

fish soun NAMIBIA

meat and porridge NEPAL

lentils

NETHERLANDS potatoes mashed with vegetables (and SPAIN

SUDAN

SWEDEN

meatball

SYRIA

TAJIKISTAN

TANZANIA

THAILAND

Pad Tha

TOGO

TUNISIA

TURKEY

UGANDA

UKRAINE

beet-root soup

UNITED KINGDOM

(See England, and Wales)

UNITED STATES

URUGUAY

UZBEKISTAN

rice pilaf

VIFTNAM

WALES

vegeta

YEMEN

**ZAMBIA** 

meat or peanut

ZIMBABWE

VENEZUELA

rice and beans

Reef noodle sour

TURKMENISTAN

mutton, carrot, rice pilat

steamed green banana

carrots, and lamb

cornmeal musl

SWITZERLAND

and seasoning

potato omelet

stewed brown beans

Rice and curry boiled rice, vegetable curry, meat curry,

a melted blend of cheeses, white wine,

ground lamb, bulgur, and seasonings

steamed rice mixed with lentils, raising

stir-fried rice noodles with eggs

(see Central African Republic,

caramelized chicken with rice, pigeon

couscous spiced with harissa, paprika.

cinnamon, and cumin served with onions

green pepper, potatoes, carrots, chickpeas,

meat (lamb) roasted on a vertical spit often

wrapped in a flatbread with toppings

ground beef patty in a bun with lettuce

sandwich with a slice of filet mignon

stew of lamb and leek with seasonal

brown meat stew with potatoes, tomatoes

commeal-based porridge eaten with side

dishes of vegetables and a protein such as

cornmeal-based porridge eaten with side

dishes of vegetables and/or meat

onions, and hilbeh and zhug ground spices

and often bacon, eggs, and ham

tomato, and other condiments or toppings

nayonnaise, olives, mozzarella, tomatoes

fish sauce, and shrimp

TRINIDAD AND TORAGO

peas, and coconut milk

and sometimes meat or fish

dhal (spiced lentils) and papadum

**SRI LANKA** 

NEW ZEALAND NICARAGUA

rice and beans NIGERIA

rice cooked (or baked) with ground tomatoes, peppers, sometimes meat and vegetables, other spices NORTHERN IRELAND plate of bacon rashers, sausages, black

pudding, eggs, potato farl, and soda farl (breads fried in pork fat) NORWAY

lamb and cabbage PAKISTAN rice and lamb

PANAMA de gallina stew of chicken with plantain, potato, cassava, and vuca.

PAPUA NEW GUINEA pork, sweet potatoes, rice and greens cooked in an earthen oven (r

PARAGIJAY cheese combread with onions and pork fat

PERU diced fish marinated in lime juice

PHILIPPINEES meat (chicken, sometimes pork) with vinegar and garlic

POLAND savory meat and cabbage stew

PORTUGAL dried and salted codfish ROMANIA

Ciorbă de burtă tripe soup

SAINT LUCIA

SAUDI ARABIA

SCOTLAND

SENEGAL

SERBIA

minced meat

SINGAPORE

SLOVAKIA

hacor

SOMALIA

topping

SOUTH AFRICA

sheep's pluck pudding

chicken, rice, and chili sauce

RUSSIA minced meat dumplings

RWANDA cornmeal mush SAINT KITTS AND NEVIS

spicy plantains, and breadfruit

green bananas stewed with salt fish

SAINT VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES

(northern pike) and tomato sauce

rice with spices, meat, and vegetables

West African "rice fish" with tomato sauce

potato dumplings with sheep cheese and

Somali rice with spices and meat

spiced minced meat with egg-based

roasted breadfruit plant with fried jackfish

Fermented Foods of the World

Sandor Katz, Alex Cole-Weiss, Heather Sparks

— previous pages —

Global Gastronomy

Sophia Hussain, Sasha Wizansky



Global Spaghetti

Cristina Capineri, Claudio Calvino, Antonello Romano, Michela Teobaldi





Cristina Capineri Claudio Calvino Antonello Romano Michela Teobaldi

How global is spaghetti? Apparently more than Van Gogh! A Google search returns 117 million pages on "spaghetti" but only 86 million pages for Van Gogh. The search volume reported by Google trends for spaghetti stems from the worldwide diffusion of pasta consumption. The data show that pasta is part of several cultures' diets, in particular in North and South America and in central and southern Europe. Why so global? Well, more than immigration flows and tourism, the "soft power" of the Mediterranean diet accounts for the globalization of "spaghetti". Namely, it is the seduction exerted by the Mediterranean cooking culture which has made "spaghetti" root in different laces and embed in local cooking cultures.



## Pasta Consumption Kg/ capita /2011



1 Kg = 7716 calories

# Google Search Volume for "Spaghetti" 2004-2012

- Low
- Medium
- High
- Very high

Categories are refered to google trends. "Very High" = 100 (max search volume)



Taboo Foods: Food and Drink People Avoid for Religious Reasons

Paolo Dilda & Fabio Mandredini

# **TABOO FOODS:** food and drink people avoid for religious reasons

Paolo Dilda, Fabio Manfredini Data analysis and mapping lab, Dept. of Architecture and Planning (Diap) – Politecnico di Milano - paolo.dilda@polimi.it, fabio.manfredini@polimi.it

Food may establish a cultural identity of an ethnic group, religion, or nation. Food taboos are prohibitions against consuming certain foods and they may strengthen cultural identity while establishing differences between various groups. Food taboos may have originally been established to protect human health, express empathy or form group cohesion or identity. This map shows only those foods that are banned by major religious institutions.

Of course, in our current world of global mobility, there will be people belonging to all of these mapped religions observing these food restrictions in all parts of the world. There are also other religious-based food taboos that don't appear on this map because they are observed by a religion apart from the local dominant religion. Examples include vegetarian restrictions by Indian Jains, caffeine restrictions by Utah Mormons, as well as many local food taboos practiced by indigenous religions.



A Lunchbox Foodshed

Students of Rybners Gymnasium, Thomas Nielsen, Niels Nielson, Terra N Tice

# A Lunchbox Foodshed



On Wednesday the 5th of September, class 1.a. of the Rybners Gymnasium in Esberg, Denmark, was asked to participate in an experiment of mapping the origins of their lunchboxes. All students, age 15–17 (6 male, 21 female) were handed 3 maps; one of Denmark, one of Europe, and a world map. They were then asked to show on the map where in the world they thought the different parts of their lunch were originally sourced. The students were then instructed to investigate their observations further at home. The next day the class got together and drew **this** map as a mash up of their previous work.

The map is a curious blend of awareness and unawareness of agricultural products and industrial outputs. The products labeled on the map are wheat, cinnamon buns, ham (as part of a toast) and beef cattle. Other images and drawings clearly illustrate Greek yogurt, Italian mozzarella cheese, pomegranate and watermelon from Turkey, with the exception of the toast, which apparently originates in Germany.

There are many things that can be understood by this map including the students' awareness of the origins of their lunches, the context of their daily food intake while at school, and also a spatial orientation for high school students in a globalized, commoditized food chain.

To learn more about this project, contact N.C. Nielsen, ncn@rybners.dk Fruity London: Mapping Where London Gets Its Fruit From, With Fruit

The Geography Collective & Kaitlin Jaffe

# FRUITY LONDON Mapping where London gets its fruit from, with fruit



To celebrate the release of their new book, Mission:Explore Food, The Geography Collective decided to go on a little mission in London. A group of them met at Stanford's Travel before splitting into three teams. The mission was to harvest as many different varieties of fruit as they could, meeting just 3 hours later at Speaker's Corner in Hyde Park. One team went to markets in East Ham, another to Brixton and the final team to Borough Market. As well as going to open markets they went into some well-known "local" supermarkets too. Together they managed to gather nearly 150 varieties of fruit from 6 continents. A lot of food miles!

The plan was to arrange the fruit into a street-map that represented where in the world London gets some of its fruits from. They were not looking to create a world map of where food is grown or show how much of different fruits are consumed by the capital, but rather how many different things come from different places. The map was inspired by Worldmapper and Views of the World cartograms, with everything bunched-up and "places", where fruit did not come from disappearing. Then a map was stretched underneath to match the "projection" of the fruit. Africa looks very different. The geographic location is very rough, but you should be able to see Britain at the top of the map with Spain to the south, a French melon to the southeast and Holland above that. Below Europe, West and Central Africa are empty but East and South Africa were the source of many fruits, including lots of apples. A cherry and a couple of berries came from North America, very little compared to the papaya, banana, apples, mango, pineapple and much more from South America. Can you spot the Kiwi? Can you spot Mauritius?

When doing a mission like this it's virtually impossible to not reflect on the people who produce fruits and question the food system that we're a part of.

Undersea Migration: Where Tuna Goes When You're Not Eating It

H R Smith & Audrey Nieh



#### Source: Tagging of Pacific Predators (TOPP)



CETACEANS blue, fin, sperm, and humpback whales



and albacore



# TUNA yellowfin, bluefin,

SHARKS salmon, white, blue, mako, and common thresher,



SEA TURTLES leatherback and loggerhead

# UNDERSEA MIGRATION WHERE TUNA GOES WHEN YOU'RE NOT EATING IT

Throughout time, human curiosity concerning the travel patterns of the creatures of the ocean has focused on how to best find the most delicious ones and eat them.

Then, at the beginning of the millennium, TOPP, an interdisciplinary research group dedicated to aquatic migration, began tagging fish, whales, and tortoises along the western coast of America. Some of the tags sent data to a satellite uplink. Others-on species more likely to be caught and

eaten-functioned more like a black box-collecting data on their journey until their host was caught by a fishing boat and the tag was cut off and mailed in for a reward.

The result: an enormous web of data and a glimpse at world where national boundaries are irrelevant and the quest for food and habitat sorts the ocean into undersea highways. Here, the paths of four different types of ocean life, between the years 2000 and 2009.


Dulce de Leche

Erica Simek & Esther Katz



8<sup>th</sup> Century

16<sup>th</sup>

17<sup>th</sup> - 18<sup>th</sup>

19<sup>th</sup>

**20**<sup>th</sup>

**21**<sup>st</sup>

#### Everyday Eating of the Eastern Mediterranean

Nick Danforth & Ryan Cooper

# Everyday Eating



Strong Coffee

# Numbered 1. ALBANIA 2. MACEDONIA 4. NORTHERN 6. GAZA STRIP 7. LEBANON 8. WEST BANK

# of the Eastern Mediterranean

Nick Danforth (Author)

Ryan Cooper (Cartographer)



Hummus &





Over the past two centuries, immigrants from throught the Balkans and Middle East brought a number of unique dishes to America, where they have cohered into a unified "Middle Eastern" or "Mediterranean" cuisine. These foods span a wide area, crossing religious national, and linguistic boundaries. Yet in an era when almost everything can be found everywhere, charting the areas in which certain foods are widely available and regularly consumed helps define a variety of culinary, cultural, and geographic regions.

Anise Liquor

Zibib

Based on my time in the region and my conversations with its residents, it is possible to conclude, for example, that the practice of drinking strong coffee, in small cups, with grounds reaches from the Balkans to North Africa. Octopus is consumed where octopus live. Hummus, for less obvious reasons, is quite rare in Greece and Turkey Like falafel, its northern limit is strangely co-terminus with that of the Arabic language. I have not speculated on the origins of contested foods like baklava, nor tried to map tendencies, like the mustache, that are prominent throughout the region. In these maps I treat food as a form of cultural practice that treads the line between stereotypes and genuine markers of ethnic identity

Hummus 😑 Falafel

Falafel

Craft Brewing in the USA

Cameron Reed

# **CRAFT BREWING IN THE USA**

Craft breweries are small, independent, and known for making delicious and distinctive beers. They use traditional ingredients like malted barley, but may also experiment with other ingredients like fruits and spices to create unique brews. While large breweries still control nearly 95% of the US beer market by

volume, the craft brewing industry has been growing, with the number of operating brewers doubling since 2005.



Muckleshoot Traditional Food Map

Annie Brulé, Roger Fernandes, Valerie Segrest



The Muckleshoot Traditional Food Map represents the food system of the Muckleshoot Tribe of Indians in Washington State. Breaking free of GIS-based mapping methodologies, the cartography team opted early on for more culturally-appropriate ways of representing a food system, recognizing that in order for the information to resonate with a majority of tribe members (the intended audience), it would need to feel like the place it represents—not only "resources," but "home."

The map is both an historical view of traditional hunting, fishing, and gathering areas the tribe has utilized for millenia, and also, most importantly, an envisioning of new community food resources that can serve the tribe in their current quest for greater food sovereignty and connection with the traditional diet that has sustained and kept their culture healthy for thousands of years. It is innovative in its use of map-making as a dynamic tool for change and jointly-envisioned community development. This is a reflection of what has been called a "cultural renaissance" among many Northwest tribes, who are recovering their traditions and culture through hunting, gathering, preparing, and sharing their native foods.

The map is a key piece of the Muckleshoot Food Sovereignty Project, a multi-year, intergenerational effort to increase knowledge and access to traditional foods through celebrations, classes, garden projects, and even a Traditional Food Bank. Project leader Valerie Segrest, an enrolled Muckleshoot tribe member, brought in community-based cartographer Annie Brulé to lead the mapping work, and native storyteller and artist Roger Fernandes to weave story into the process. The map is a product of the combined knowledge and vision of multiple tribe members who advised its creation and ensured the final image would be received equally well by tribal leaders, granting bodies, and families, who are using the knowledge and information it contains in their daily lives and food choices.

Produced under the guidance of Muckleshoot community members by the team of Annie Brulé (community mapping specialist), Roger Fernandes (Lower Elwha S'Klallam), and Valerie Segrest (Muckleshoot), with funding from the Northwest Indian College, the United States Department of Agriculture, and the Honor the Earth Foundation. The Salt War of 1540 and the Pope's Bread: A Cartographic Refutation of a Perugian Urban Legend

Zachary Nowak & Annita Lucchesi

# The Salt War of 1540 and the Pope's Bread: A Cartographic Refutation of a Perugian Urban Legend

The traditional bread in the central Italian city of Perugia is locally known as *pane sciapo* (unsalted bread), and is made without salt. According to inhabitants of Perugia, their ancestors stopped putting salt in their bread after the imposition of a burdensome new tax on salt by Pope Paul III in 1540. Perugia was at the time part of the Papal States, a swath of territory controlled by the medieval and Renaissance popes. Is this a historical event-turned-cuisine, or just another food myth? Cartography can provide us with an answer to this riddle.





If Perugians turned to unsalted bread after the imposition of the salt tax in 1540, we would expect to find unsalted bread only in the area that the city controlled in 1540. It's possible, though, that other residents of the Papal States reacted the same way to the 1540 tax: in this case we would find unsalted bread in all of the territory the Vatican controlled in 1540.

As is evident, there is a very large swath of territory where one finds unsalted bread as the principal bread. Does this match the "territory of unsalted bread"? Cartography makes it clear that the boundaries of unsalted bread don't match up with Perugian territory or the Papal States in 1540.



"The bread here is made with a tiny amount of salt, as Umbria belonged to the pope, and vexed by taxes the city responded like this to a tax on the consumption of salt which in 1540 set off a war." -- Rita Boini

Zachary Nowak, with Annita Lucchesi

Rice, Beans & A Pot: Food as an Expression of Afro-Antillean Identity in the Archipelago of Bocas del Toro, Panama

Carla Guerrón-Montero & Ryan Cooper



Tacos de Oakland: Taco Trucks of East Oakland

Nica Powell & Mark Bischoff

— next pages —

Mapping Movement Through Food Purchase 2012 Mapping Memories of Food from the 1950s

Jackie Malcolm





East Oakland is famous for its Taco Trucks. While these trucks are on four wheels, their locations are mostly stationary. They are often located in parking lots in areas with few established restaurants - bringing life to the street - though there are a few that are adjacent to restaurants that bear the same name.

Serving street-style tacos (soft corn tortillas topped with meat, onions, cilantro and salsa) and other Mexican specialties. From early in the morning to late into the night, these trucks are favorite cheap-eats spots for Oaklanders.

- 5 TACOS SINALOA Fruitvale & E 13th Ave
- 6 EL NOVILLO Fruitvale & San Leandro

**TACOS ZAMARANO EL CENTENARIO** International & 48th Ave

Coliseum Way & High St

TAMALES ACAPULCO Fruitvale & E 15th St  21 EL EMPERADOR in the Food Garden Foothill & 42nd Ave
 22 EL POLLO Foothill & High St



Nica Powell, Cartographer and Researcher; Mark Bischoff, Reasearcher - Oakland, CA. 2008. Revised 2012. Each truck visted and recorded in person to create this map.



### **MAPPING MOVEMENT THROUGH FOOD PURCHASE 2012**

car	r bus	Jane Margaret	Aged 77 Aged 70s	Clyde Place Lounge Hill Street Lounge - husband does shopping in car	
DUNDEE	Scotland DUNDEE	The sho 195 rou	e maps disp opping for fo 50s, to the e tes of the ci	layed on these pages convey the extent to which od has migrated from a city centre experience in the dge of city supermarkets that now line the arterial ty of Dundee, Scotland.	
		<b>Mo</b> mo	<b>vement</b> abovement of a	ove, visualises the contemporary patterns of group of elderly people over the course of a week,	

England

\_\_\_\_ bus

Wales

**Movement** above, visualises the contemporary patterns of movement of a group of elderly people over the course of a week, when shopping for food. The elderly people all lived in sheltered housing accommodation within suburbs of the city at four separate locations. Each of these locations have a central community lounge where the elderly can meet and engage in social activities. What is significant about this map is that it communicates how seldom the elderly people of Dundee visited the city centre to buy their food. Most used public transport or relied upon relatives to take them by car, and one participant used her mobility scooter to visit the local supermarkets. Margaret, although living more centrally, travelled to the supermarkets on the outer ring road of the city.

Aged 73 Clyde Place Lounge - taken by family in car

If we contrast this map with **Memories** on the opposite page we can observe the change that has occurred in Dundee when people shop for their food. Memories of food were gathered at 4 discussion groups held within the community lounges. Mapping the memories of the elderly people who contributed to this research, communicates the spatial and temporal dimensions that were contained within their remembrances. Using a map of Dundee City Centre from 1950 as a base layer, the memories narrated by the elderly were placed at the exact locations where the food shops had once stood. To ensure accuracy, names of premises and their locations were cross checked with a Dundee Street Directory, published by Burns & Harris in 1946-47.

Observing the contemporary and historical patterns of movement through food purchase, and through memories, highlighted the differences in past and present consumer habits, whilst locating the significance of place within the temporal dimensions of memories for the elderly people of Dundee.

by Jackie Malcolm

## **MAPPING MEMORIES OF FOOD FROM THE 1950s**



Allmende-Kontor Community Garden

Dörte Martens, Lisa Welsby, Elisabeth Biederbick, Severin Halder, Matthias Jung, Fabian Singelnstein



#### **Guidelines for Social and Ecological Cooperation**

#### To all:

- Please do not leave any litter!
- Do not steal instead: participate!
- Please do not build new raised beds
- Get active, but do not destroy anything!
- Participation is at your own risk.
- Donations are appreciated.

Formal specifications

To gardeners:

- Do not dig into the ground.The gardening plots are only given away
- temporarily Raised bed extension? - See information
- signs Avoid any risk of injury when building plot
- constructions.Do not store any construction material.
- Please obey the park rules .

- Social guidelines:
- Form plot communities: build, plant and water commonly.
- Organize yourselves and inform the AK about your contacts, your self-organized initiatives, abandoned plot, etc.
- Be aware of density and height when building.
- Do not limit others, or their view.

#### Ecological guidelines:

- Try to garden as ecologically as possible. Please do not use (agro-)chemicals such as fertilizer. Please be aware to use as few hybrid species as possible.
- Be aware of saving resources (such as water, soil and wood)
- Raised beds can be built by recycled material, but please use "natural" material whenever possible (no styrofoam, avoid plastic)

The Landscape We Eat

Seth Denizen & Tat Bonvehi

Mar y Montaña | Mountain and Sea: is a traditional dish from the northern coast of Spain which combine flavours and ingredients from the land and sea.

**Mugaritz recipe:** Loin of blue mackerel, coated with an infusion of crushed sesame seeds and milk skin, in a vegetable broth from onions, chickpeas, carrots, and leek. Olive oil and salt.

THE LANDSCAPE WE EAT A recipe is more than the food it is made of: the geography of our dinner spills off of the plate. Mugaritz Rest. Herrenteria. Basque Country. Spain Authors: Seth Denizen/Tat Bonvehi.



Map data sources and projections, where available, arranged by page number.

- 13. Harvesting The World. Bill Rankin (Yale University, radicalcartography.net). Sources Navin Ramankutty, Jonathan Foley. 2011. Global Cropland and Pasture Data from 1700–2007. Beta release. Projection Eckert IV with central meridian at 10° E.
- **15.** Foodscapes. Benjamin D Hennig (University of Sheffield). Sources Ramankutty N, Evan AT, Monfreda C, Foley JA. 2010. Socioeconomic Data and Applications Center (SEDAC), Columbia University, Palisades, NY. Projection (custom) 'Gridded Cartogram.'
- 17. Aroids: The World's Oldest Food Crop. Karin Vaneker, Erwin Slaats. Sources The US Census Bureau; Ramanatha Rao V, Matthews Peter J, Eyzaguirre Pablo B, Hunter D, editors. 2010. The Global Diversity of Taro: Ethnobotany and Conservation. Rome: Biodiversity International; Vaneker K. 2013. Aroid Production and Postharvest Practices [forthcoming] in Encyclopedia of Food and Agricultural Ethics. Paul B Thompson, David M Kaplan, editors. Springer Verlag; Vaneker K, Slaats E. 2013. Mapping Edible Aroids [forthcoming] In Glide12—Global Interaction in Design. A Bennet, editor. Troy, NY: Baohause.org.
- 19. The World According to Chile Peppers. Gerald Zhang-Schmidt (chilicult.com), Crystalyn DelaCruz. Sources Shapefiles from diva-gis.org.
- 21. The Grain Necessities. Kamini Iyer (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Ministry of Agriculture, Government of India.
- 23. A Landscape of Specialization. Bill Rankin (Yale University, radicalcartography.net). Sources US Census of Agriculture, 2007. Projection Albers Equal-Area Conic.
- **25. The American Beershed.** Cameron Reed (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). **Sources** Brewers Association directory of US breweries. **Projection** USA Contiguous Albers Equal Area Conic.
- 27. Fungus AmongUS. Shannon Kail (University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee), Terra N Tice (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Mushroom farm location data: The Mushroom Growers' Newsletter; Top States Production percentages, USDA; Mushroom story: American Mushroom Institute. Projection Lambert Conformal Conic (48 states, Mexico, Canada), Transverse Mercator NAD1983 (Hawaii), World Mercator (Alaska).
- **29.** Commodity Agriculture and Subsidies. Urban Design Lab (The Earth Institute, Columbia University). Sources USDA National Agriculture Statistics Service.
- Wealth and Agricultural Subsidies in the European Union. Chris Carson (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Europa.eu; Farmsubsidy.org.
- 33. Protecting Food Specialities in the EU. Giuliano Petrarulo. Sources UE official website (europa.eu); the Foundation for the protection and the valorization of quality agri-food products.
- **35. Made in the Shade: Bird Friendly Coffee.** Anika Rice (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). **Sources** Smithsonian Migratory Bird Center.
- Oenocarpus bataua: the Original Amazonian Superfood. Paul VA Fine & Sarah Lewis (University of California, Berkeley), Tarek Milleron (Caura

Futures, Inc). Sources Balick MJ. 1988. Jessenia and Oenocarpus: neotropical oil palms worthy of domestication. Food and Agriculture Organization, Rome: Balick MI. Gershoff SN. 1981. Nutritional evaluation of the Jessenia bataua palm: source of high quality protein and oil from tropical America. Economic Botany 35(3): 261-271; Brokamp G, Valderrama N, Mittelbach M, Grandez RCA, Barfod AS, Weigend M. 2011. Trade in palm products in northwestern South America. Botanical Review 77: 571–606; Henderson A. 1995. Palms of the Amazon, Oxford University Press; Henderson A, Galeano G, Bernal R. 1997. Field Guide to Palms of the Americas. Princeton University Press; Marmolejo D, Montes ME, Bernal R. 2008. Nombres amerindios de las palmas (Palmae) de Colombia. Revista Peruana de Biologia 15(supl. 1): 151-190; Morcote-Rios, G, Bernal R. 2001. Remains of palms (Palmae) at archeological sites in the New World: a review. The botanical review 67(3): 309–350; Zent M. personal communication.

- 39. California's Growing Organic Farm Movement. Michele S Forman, Terra N Tice (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources California Department of Agriculture, Organic Division; Michael Pollan, UC Berkeley Department of Journalism; Karen Klonsky, Dept of Agricultural and Resource Economics, University of California, Davis. Projection California Teale Albers.
- **41. Maryland Meat Maps.** Amanda Behrens, Julia Simons, James Harding, Michael Milli (Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future) **Sources** USDA Food Safety and Inspection Service, 2012 Meat, Poultry and Egg Product Inspection Directory; University of Maryland Extension, 2009; USDA Inspected Facilities/Products and Services in Maryland; University of Maryland Extension, 2009 Slaughter and/or Process Facilities in Maryland; Maryland Department of Agriculture, Food Quality Assurance Program, 2012 Rabbit and Poultry On-Farm Slaughter/Processing Program; USDA Census of Agriculture, 2007. **Projection** NAD 1983 State Plane Maryland.
- **43.** Texas Seafood Landings. Robyn Metcalfe (The Food Lab, University of Texas, Austin), Jeff Ingebritsen (Mapping the Delicious). Sources Texas Parks and Wildlife Department and the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. Projection Lambert Conformal Conic.
- 45. The Garden City: Los Angeles, 1940. Alex Tarr (University of California, Berkeley), Rosten Woo. Sources Land Use Survey, County of Los Angeles; Classification of Land uses. A report on WPA project L9785; Official Project No. 665–07–3–65. The Regional Planning Commission, Los Angeles, CA, 1940; GIS: 1940 Census Tracts provided by: Minnesota Population Center. National Historical Geographic Information System: Version 2.0. Minneapolis, MN: University of Minnesota 2011. Projection USA Contiguous Albers Equal Area Conic.
- **46.** Potential Rooftop Farming in New York City. Urban Design Lab (The Earth Institute, Columbia University). **Sources** NYC Department of Information Technology and Telecommunications; NYC Department of City Planning.
- Food Production in New York City. Urban Design Lab (The Earth Institute, Columbia University).

**Sources** Mara Gittleman/Farming Concrete, Tyler Caruso/Thread Collective.

- 49. Compost Green Map of Manhattan: Worms in the Green Apple. Wendy Brawer, Carlos Martinez, Amya Farquhar, Jane Barber, Risa Ishikawa, Andrew Sass, Aaron Reiss (Green Map System). Sources Site research by Green Map System, Lower East Side Ecology Center, GrowNYC, New York University Sustainability, Green Thumb Grow Together participants, the Manhattan Borough President's Office, and the general public; Base Map courtesy of the NYC Cycling Map of NYC Department of City Planning, Transportation Division, Bicycle Network Development Program & Bytes of the Big Apple DCP Lion File. © Department of City Planning.
- Toronto's Eco Schools: From Food Waste to Food Gardens. Asya Bidordinova & Tammara Soma (University of Toronto), Vick Naresh (Iridium Art). Sources Open Data—City of Toronto.
- **55.** Food in Flux: The World of Imports. Chelsea Guerrero (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). **Sources** Food and Agriculture Organization 2005–2007, 2010.
- **57. Global Almond Trade and California.** Garrett Bradford (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources FAOSTAT and the Almond Board of California. **Projection** Peirce quincuncial.
- **59.** A Tomato's European Tour. Lucia Argüelles (Autonomous University of Barcelona), Jennifer Lara (Guatamala). Sources Food imports and exports by country and by item, 2009. Faostat; Population 2009. Population Reference Bureau, 2009. World Population data sheet.
- The Distance Food Will Go to Be Eaten: A Food Mile Comparison. Diana Martin (Austin Community College). Sources City of Austin: GIS Data sets, Capital Area Council of Governments (CAPCOG), Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI). Projection USA Contiguous Equidistant Conic (USA), NAD 1983 State Plane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet (Texas).
- **63.** A Geography of Illinois Wheat. Sarah Kavage. Sources Illinois county level crop production data from the National Agricultural Statistics Service, 2005–2006; Data on the distribution of wheat uses from the report Wheat Year in Review (Domestic), November 2008, Economic Research Service division, USDA. **Projection** Hand-drawn, based on a Lambert Conformal Conic.
- 64–65. Fresh Catch: Community Supported Fishery in Massachusetts; Farm to Table: Community Supported Agriculture in Massachusetts. Steven E Silvern & Milan Budhathoki (Salem State University). Sources Salem State University Survey of Community Supported Agriculture, December 2011, Local Harvest Local Catch, Massachusetts Department of Agriculture, Community Involved in Sustainable Agriculture, Northeastern Atlantic Marine Alliance.
- 67. Food Labels: Branding Place of Origin. Alicia Fisher & Ryan Cooper (University of Kentucky), John-Mark Hack (Local Foods Association), Benjamin Golder. Sources Food Alliance, Appalachian Sustainable Agriculture Project, OpenStreetMap, US Census 2010.
- **69. Berkeley's Farmers' Markets.** Cameron Reed (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). **Source** The Ecology Center.
- 70. Fallen Fruit. David Burns, Matias Viegener, Austin

Young (Fallen Fruit). **Source** Data ground-truthed by Fallen Fruit.

- **75.** Clobal Imbalance in the Availability of Nutritious Food. Lucia Argüelles (Autonomous University of Barcelona), Jennifer Lara (Guatemala). Sources Obesity data from 2010 WHO database; Undernourishment data from 2005–2007. FAO 2009. The state of food insecurity in the world; Population 2009. Population Reference Bureau, 2009. World Population data sheet; Food consumption by country and by item for 2009. FAOSTAT.
- 77. Land For Sale: The New Trend of Commercial Pressures on Land in Sub-Saharan Africa. Lucia Argüelles (Autonomous University of Barcelona), Jennifer Lara (Guatemala). Sources Land acquired or targeted for agricultural purposes in Sub-Saharan Africa. Land matrix: Landportal.info.
- 79. Threats to Indigenous Food Traditions in North America. Annita Lucchesi (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Alaska Dispatch, Environmental & Food Justice (blog), Indian Country Today Media Network, Klamath Media, Longhouse Media, The Tyee, Think Mexican; Photos by Ansgar Walk, Chemoqua, Jeremy Stapleton, NarparMI, Patrick McCully, US EPA, US Fish & Wildlife Service, Zureks.
- Food Insecurity & Indigenous Communities in Canada's North. Annita Lucchesi (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Canada census (2006 edition); original research (online survey, assisted by indigenous activists and Feeding My Family, a Nunavummiut-led food security organization.
- **83.** Canadian Food Networks: Propagating the Food Movement. Charles Z Levkoe (University of Toronto), Claudia Dávila. Sources Adapted from a Briarpatch Magazine special issue on decolonializing food, September/October 2011. We gratefully acknowledge the work of Shayna Stock and Sarah Wakefield. The research for the map was part of a project entitled Understanding Scale and Networks in Social Mobilization: A Case Study of the Community Food Security Movement in Canada and was supported through a grant from Social Sciences and Humanities Research Council of Canada.
- 85. Which Came First, Food Policy or Food Hub? Alicia Fisher (University of Kentucky), Gabriele Ciciurkaite, Benjamin Golder. Sources Farmers Market Data: USDA Agricultural Marketing Survey National Farmers Market Directory. Geographic Coordinates Spreadsheet for US Farmers Markets (10–2010); SNAP/Food Stamp User Data: American FactFinder—US Census Bureau & American Community Survey; Cartographic Boundaries for SNAP/ Food Stamp Data: US Census Bureau; other base map elements: Natural Earth Data. Projection USA Contiguous Albers Equal Area Conic.
- 87. Working For Justice Along the Food Chain. John de Goede, Alex Tarr (University of California, Berkeley). Source Food Chain Workers Alliance.
- 89. Farmers Markets: Accessible to All? Margaret Raimann (University of Wisconsin, Madison).
   Sources Farmers Market Data: USDA Agricultural Marketing Survey National Farmers Market Directory "Geographic Coordinates Spreadsheet for US Farmers Markets" (10–2010); SNAP/Food Stamp User Data: American FactFinder, US Census Bureau & American Community Survey; Cartographic

Boundaries for SNAP/Food Stamp Data: US Census Bureau. **Projection** USA Contiguous Albers Equal Area Conic, NAD 1983.

- **91.** The Rise of Foodbanks in England. Mark A Green & Hannah Lambie-Mumford (University of Sheffield). **Sources** Unemployment and population data for 2010–2011 can be found at the Local Authority level from 'Neighbourhood Statistics,' an ONS run data bank. Locations of the Foodbanks of the Trussell Trust are found on their website: trusselltrust.org. Data on food given out by each foodbank is found from the annual reports compiled by the Trussel Trust. **Projection** OSGB 1936/British National Grid, Transverse Mercator.
- 93. Securing Food and Frontiers in Okinawa, Japan. Emma Tome (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources The Historical Atlas of Okinawa. 1981; Topographic Maps of the Ryukyu Islands. 1921. pp 22–39; ESRI media disc base data, 2010, Redlands, CA; US Military Bases and Areas in Okinawa. Projection Japan zone 15.
- **95.** Collecting Food Surplus in Northeastern Italy. Giuliano Petrarulo. Sources Banco Alimentare.
- **96.** Another Pampa is Possible!!! Iconoclasistas. Sources Collective mapping workshops: Pañuelos en Rebeldía/Popular Pedagogy. Buenos Aires, 2008; Escuela de Ciencias de la Información/National University of Cordoba. Córdoba, 2008; Casa 13/ independent art space. Córdoba, 2008; Facultad de Ciencias Económicas/National University of Rosario. Rosario, Santa Fe, 2008; Centro Cultural La Toma/ independent cultural and politic space. Rosario, Santa Fe, 2008; Unión de Asambleas Ciudadanas/ Social and environmental assemblies against the plundering of natural resources. Córdoba, 2009; the many people who participated in Collective mapping workshops in Tandil, Olavarría, San Andrés de Giles, and La Plata. Buenos Aires, 2009.
- 99. Regional Food Resilience: Mapping Potential Adaptations to San Francisco Bay Area's Food System. N Claire Napawan (University of California, Davis), Ellen Burke (Grow-City.org). Sources San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission, USGS, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program.
- 101. Local Food in Santa Clara County. Brian Fulfrost. Sources Greenbelt Alliance, American Community Survey, BFA, Public Health Law and Policy. Projection CA State Plane, Zone 3, NAD83.
- 103. Modified Retail Food Environment Index in Santa Clara County. Brian Fulfrost. Sources Center for Disease Control and Prevention, California Nutrition Network, USDA. Projection CA State Plane, Zone 3, NAD83.
- 105. Baltimore City Food Swamps. Amanda Behrens, Julia Simons, James Harding, Michael Milli (Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future). Sources Johns Hopkins Center for a Livable Future, ESRI Updated Demographics (2010/2015), 2005–2009 American Community Survey Five Year Estimates, Baltimore City Health Department Food Permit List, 2011. Projection Lambert Conformal Conic.
- 106–107. Starving for Fresh Food: Food Deserts in Los Angeles; Drowning in Fast Food: Food Swamps in Los Angeles. Kae Yamane (Rutgers). Sources Food Desert to Food Oasis: Promoting Grocery Store Development in South Los Angeles, Community Health Councils, July 2010; The Los Angeles Times: Mapping L. A. Project; Network for a Healthy

California—GIS Map Viewer; California Department of Public Health, 2011; Jennifer Medina. In South Los Angeles, New Fast-Food Spots Get a 'No, Thanks'. *The New York Times*. January 15, 2011; Map: Data Desk LA Google Maps.

- 109. San Francisco Urban Agricultural Projects. Noah Christman, David Peters, Eli Zigas (SPUR), Terra N Tice (University of California, Berkeley). Sources Inventory of urban agriculture sites based on data from: Recreation and Parks Department, Community Gardens Program; San Francisco Community Gardens. San Francisco Garden Resource Organization; correspondence with Marvin Yee, Recreation and Parks Department, accessed November 2011; Jean Koch, Presidio Trust; Julia Brashares, San Francisco Parks Alliance; Elizabeth Li; and additional SPUR research.
- Land Availability in New York City. Urban Design Lab (The Earth Institute, Columbia University). Sources MaPLUTO, Mara Gittleman/Farming Concrete.
- 113. Cultivate the Commons, Urban Agriculture's Potential in Oakland, California. Nathan McClintock (Portland State University), Jenny Cooper (University of Michigan, Ann Arbor). Sources Alameda County; City of Oakland; University of California Cooperative Extension; United States Geological Survey. Projection WGS 1984 UTM 10N.
- 115. Growing Food and Community in West Oakland. Marek K Jakubowski (University of California, Berkeley). Sources City Slicker Farms, USGS, ESRI. Projection WGS 1984 Web Mercator.
- **118–125. Mission:Explore Food Cartography.** The Geography Collective & City Farmers.
- 129. Global Gastronomy: An Unofficial Map of National Dishes. Sophia Hussain, Sasha Wizansky (Meatpaper). Sources Data was gathered by intrepid internet research.
- 131. Fermented Foods of the World. Sandor Katz (Author of *The Art of Fermentation* and *Wild Fermentation*), Alex Cole-Weiss (Good Qi Kimchi), Heather Sparks (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab).
  Sources Katz S. 2003. Wild Fermentation: The Flavor, Nutrition and Craft of Live-Culture Foods; base Map: Natural Earth; photography: copyright free from wikimedia. Projection North Pole Lambert Equal Area.
- 133. Global Spaghetti. Cristina Capineri, Michela Teobaldi, Claudio Calvino, Antonella Romano (Laboratorio Ladest). Sources Google.com, I.P.O. 2011, UNESCO 2010.
- 135. Taboo Foods: Food and Drink People Avoid for Religious Reasons. Paolo Dilda, Fabio Manfredini (Politecnico di Milano). Source Wikipedia.
- 137. À Lunchbox Foodshed. Rybners Gymnasium class, Thomas Nielsen, Niels Nielsen, Terra N Tice. Sources Class research.
- 139. Fruity London: Mapping Where London Gets its Fruit From, with Fruit. The Geography Collective UK, Kaitlin Jaffe (University of California, Berkeley, CAGE Lab). Sources The Geography Collective, Mission:Explore; Map: webresourcesdepot.com.
- 141. Undersea Migration: Where Tuna Goes When You're Not Eating It. H R Smith, Audrey Nieh. Sources Block BA and others 2011. Tracking apex marine predator movements in a dynamic ocean. *Nature* 475.7354: 86–90.
- 143. Dulce de Leche. Erica Simek, Esther Katz (Institut

# photo credits

de Recherche pour le Développement-France). **Projection** WGS 1984 Lambert Azimuthal Equal Area, Latin American Base Map: Ellen Kuzdro; Global Inset Shaded Relief: Tom Patterson, National Park Service.

- 147. Craft Brewing in the USA. Cameron Reed (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Brewers Association directory of US breweries (www.brewersassociation.org, accessed 7/23/12). Projection Contiguous Albers Equal Area Conic (USA), Albers Equal Area Conic (Alaska), Albers Equal Area Conic (Hawaii).
- 149. Muckleshoot Traditional Food Map. Annie Brulé (LivingMaps.org, Northwest Indian College Advisory Board), Roger Fernandes, Valerie Segrest. Sources Produced under the guidance of Muckleshoot community members.
- 151. The Salt War. Zachary Nowak (Umbra Institute), Annita Lucchesi (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab). Sources Original Research, Pervsini (Egnazio Dante 1584)
- 153. Rice, Beans & A Pot: Food as an Expression of Afro-Antillean Identity in the Archipelago of Bocas del Toro, Panama. Carla Guerrón-Montero (University of Delaware), Ryan Cooper (University of Kentucky). Sources Guerrón-Montero, Carla. 2004. Afro-Antillean Cuisine and Global Tourism. Food, Culture and Society: An International Journal of Multidisciplinary Research 7(2): 29–47; Guerrón-Montero C. 2006. Tourism and Afro-Antillean Identity in Panama. Journal of Tourism and Cultural Change 4(2): 65–84; Natural Earth, OpenStreetMap, CC-BY-SA. Projection WGS 1984 Web Mercator Auxiliary Sphere.
- 155. Tacos de Oakland: Taco Trucks of Éast Oakland. Nica Powell (University of California, Berkeley CAGE Lab), Mark Bischoff. Sources Researched by scouting trucks on the ground.
- 156–157. Mapping Movement Through Food Purchase 2012; Mapping Memories of Food From the 1950s. Jackie Malcolm (University of Dundee). Sources Private research 'Food as a trigger for memory: Observing social, spatial and temporal dimensions.' September 2012.
- **159. Allmende-Kontor Community Garden.** Dörte Martens, Elisabeth Biederbick, Lisa Welsby, Severin Halder, Matthias Jung, Fabian Singelnstein (Orangotango). **Sources** Workshops; Drawing of area by Elisabeth Biederbick.
- 161. The Landscape We Eat. Seth Denizen, Tat Bonvehi. Sources Sheet 064–2 and 040–4 (UTM ED50), Departamento de Medio Ambiente, Planificación Territorial, Agricultura y Pesca in 2004; The chefs.

#### Front cover, left to right

Sugar beets: Dirk Ingo Frank Packing cans: Jeremy L Wood/US Navy Fast food: Christian Cable Fish market: Tomas Castelazo Swiss chard: Jonathunder

#### Back cover, left to right

Snack rack: Alejandro Linares Garcia Dairy truck: Dwight Burdette Tin top: Selbst Fotografiert Eggplant: Infrogmation Petri wheat: Jack Dykinga/USDA

#### **Chapter introductions**

Production: Fish market, Tomas Castelazo Distribution: Scooter chickens, Nick Plackman Security: Supermarket interior, Infrogmation Exploration: Let's Move Chicago program, USDA Identities: Fried grubs, Alejandro Linares Garcia

All photos licensed from Wikimedia Commons, the respective agencies, or the photographers.

### text notes

#### Chapter 1: Food Production

- **1.** Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, accessed November 21, 2012.
- 2. US Census Bureau, accessed November 20, 2012.
- 3. Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, accessed November 21, 2012.

#### Chapter 3: Food Security

- 1. 24 February 2011. How much is enough? *The Economist.*
- 2. Food and Agriculture Organization of the United Nations, accessed November 21, 2012





166





Institut de recherche pour le développement









The University Of Sheffield.



www.orangotango.info







ония норкіия Center for a Lívable Future













POLITECNICO DI MILANO





6 00 press







# acknowledgements

Ainé Rickard, Alaska Dispatch, Albert Angulo, Alex Brasch, Alexis Bhagat, Analisa Fenix, Andrea Jensen, Andrew Green, Angela, Anna Roth, Anne Palmer, Ava Rosen, Barbara North & Justin Quimby, Benny Amon, Bo Ejstrud, Bocanova, Caitlin Sargent, Calli Ingebritsen, Carley Coccola, Catherine Zagare, Chandler Sterling, Changelab Solutions, Charlotte Lusty & the Global Crop Diversity Trust, Chris Gratien, Chris Kail, Chris Trapani, Claudia Green, Dan Kane, David Bregulla, David Peters, David Ralston, Debra Lande, Desiree Matloob, Donna Baron, Dr Edward Hall, Dr Lorraine Van Blerk, Dr Philip D Young, Ehren Seybert, Elise Krohn, Elizabeth Li, Ella von der Haide, Elmaz Abinader, Emanuel Jurado, Emily Scheff, Environmental & Food Justice blog, Eric Fox, Faith Adiele, Feeding My Family, Fernando Mamarí, Flavio Bladimir Rodríguez, Florida International University, Frederic, Future of Marine Animal Populations, Grahame Jackson & the International Network for Edible Aroids, Gwen von Klan, Hallie Chen, Hanan Farhan, Hayley Peacock, Heather Wooten, Holly Freishtat, HOPE Collaborative, Iconoclasistas collective mapping participants, Indian Country Today Media Network, Ingrid Seyer-Ochi, Irina Levin, Jason Fraley, Jean Koch, Jeffrey Garber, Jenin Assaf, Jeralyn Beach, Jill Edgerton, Joanna Gard'ner, Jonah Mossberg, Jorge Ramón Montenegro Gómez, Josh Hattersley, Julia Brashares, Juliana Haber, June Thammasnong, Kaila Givehand, Kate Clancy, Kendra Klein, Kerstin Stelmacher, Kevin Jaffe, Kevin Koy, Kirby Sanifer, Klamath Media, Kym Pappathanasi, Lara Cushing, Lauryl Berger, Longhouse Media, Loring Danforth, Maggi Kelly, Maria Gould, Mark Bischoff, Martin Caraher, Marvin Yee, Matteo Brustenghi, Michael Pollan, Michel Fuller, Mieke Foster, Mike Jones, Mitchell Kail, Muckleshoot community advisory team, Mugaritz Restaurant, Nhu Mai, Nico Baumgarten, Nicola Twilley, Pam Paulso, Pedro Marsonet, Phil Bevis, Priscilla Connors, Professor Hiroshi Kakazu, Professor Michael Siegel, Raines Cohen, Randall E Kochevar, Rebecca Solnit, Rodrigo Martins dos Santos, Roy & Linda Stedall-Humphreys, Roy Stewart, Rusty, Rutgers Geography Department, Sam Matthews, Sarah Agudo, Sarah Lewis, Sarah Wakefield, Sasha Cuerda, Schomburg Center for Research in Black Culture, Sean Moran, Shayna Stock, Silke Greth, Snehee Khandeshi, Sten Folving, Susan & David Given-Seymour, Syd Wayman, Tanya Buckingham, The Bancroft Library, The Census of Marine Life, the citizens of Bocas del Toro, The Ford Foundation, The National Endowment for the Humanities, the passerby, The Tyee, Thiago Vinicius de Almeida da Silva, Tom Richter, Tristan Chambers, Uni High Alumni, US Army, Yuko Kakinohana and Kazuya Tominaga

# collaborators

Aaron Reiss, Alex Cole-Weiss, Alex Tarr, Alicia Fisher, Allmende-Kontor Community Garden Members, Amanda Behrens, Amya Farguhar, Andrew Sass, Anika Rice, Annie Brulé, Annita Lucchesi, Antonella Romano, Asya Bidordinova, Audrey Nieh, Austin Young, Benjamin D Hennig, Benjamin Golder, Bill Rankin, Brian Fulfrost, Cameron Reed, Carla Guerrón-Montero, Carlos Martinez, Charles Z Levkoe, Chelsea Guerrero, Chris Carson, Claudia Dávila, Claudio Calvino, Cristina Capineri, Crystalyn DelaCruz, Daniel Raven-Ellison, David Burns, David Peters, Diana Martin, Dörte Martens, Eli Zigas, Elisabeth Biederbick, Ellen Burke, Emma Tome, Erica Simek, Erwin Slaats, Esther Katz, Fabio Manfredini, Gabriele Ciciurkaite, Garrett Bradford, Gerald Zhang-Schmidt, Giuliano Petrarulo, HR Smith, Hannah Lambie-Mumford, Heather Sparks, Helen Steer, Iconoclasistas, Jacquelyn Malcolm, James Harding, Jane Barber, Jeff Ingebritsen, Jennifer Lara, Jenny Cooper, John de Goede, John-Mark Hack, Jonathon Foley, Julia Simons, Kae Yamane, Kaitlin Jaffe, Kamini Iyer, Karin Vaneker, Lisa Welsby, Lucia Argüelles, Marek Jakubowski, Margaret Raimann, Mark A. Green, Mark Bischoff, Matias Viegener, Michael Milli, Michela Teobaldi, Michele S Forman, Milan Budhathoki, N Claire Napawan, Nathan McClintock, Navin Ramankutty, Nica Powell, Nick Danforth, Niels Nielsen, Noah Christman, Paolo Dilda, Paul VA Fine, Risa Ishikawa, Robyn Metcalfe, Roger Fernandes, Rosten Woo, Ryan Cooper, Rybners Gymanasium class, Sandor Katz, Sarah Kavage, Sarah Lewis, Sasha Wizansky, Scott Andrews, Seth Denizen, Severin Halder, Shannon Kail, Sophia Hussain, Steven E. Silvern, Tammara Soma, Tarek Milleron, Tat Bonvehi, Terra N Tice, The Geography Collective & City Farmers, UK, Thomas Nielsen, Tom Morgan-Jones, Urban Design Lab, Columbia University, Valerie Segrest, Vick Naresh, Wendy Brawer, Zachary Nowak

# backers

AW, Aaron Cole, Adam McClure, Adam Vaught, Adolfo R. Mercado, Adrian Balls, Adrian Down, Adriana, Adrienne & Steve Adams, Agnès Stienne, Agnieszka Karoluk, Alan McConchie, Alan Parkinson, Alec Pettersen, Alejandro Vázquez, Alex Brasch, Alex Miller, Alexa Fritzsche, Alfred, Alice Lewis, Alice-Marie Archer, Alicia Odell, Alicia Robinson-Welsh, Alison, Allan Courtney, Allison Czapp, Allyn Bryan, Allyson Walsh, Amanda Behrens, Amelia Elizabeth, Amity, Amy Blair, Amy Bucciferro, Amy Griffin, Amy Parker, Amy Selwyn, Analisa Fenix, Anand Sarwate, Anders Gurda, Andi Davis, Andrea Blum, Andrea Iensen, Andrea Valencia, Andrew Corwin, Andrew Friedman, Andrew Janjigian, Andrew Saxe, Angel Hjarding, Angela Wills, Angi Chau, Ann Lasko-Harvill, Anna La, Anna Roth, Anna Zivian, Anne, Anne Drehfal, Anne Fousse, Anne Haney, Annie Koh, Antoniette Yap, Ariel Dekovic, Ariel Zodhiates, Ashlee Grace, Ashley Dawn, Athanasios Mazarakis, Avalon Johnson, Avelino Maestas, Baerbel LaMar, Barbara Blue, Barbara North, Barbara Tholin, Barrett Brenton, Becky, Beehive Design Collective, Ben Brown, Ben Miller, Benedikt Haerlin, Benjamin, Benjamin Burrill, Benjamin Stokes, Bernd Wiehle, Beth Satterwhite, Bethany, Bidisha Banerjee, Bill Abbott, Bill Barnes, Bill Coy, Bob GaNung, Bobby Raggazino, Bonniekarl, Brad, Brad Kik, Brandon Nordin, Brenda Sutherland, Brent Leer, Bret Kugelmass, Brian Gilman, Brian Kariger, Brian Leer, Brian Nguy, Briana Krompier, Britt Freeman, Bruce Wyman, Bryan Sivak, Buddy Alexandra Miano, Caitlin Burke, Caitlin Scott, Caius, Camila Sesana, Camille, Camille Sheppard Dohrn, Candace, Candise Branum, Captain Koala, Carla Guerron Montero, Carley, Carly Guthrie, Carol Goldstein, Carol Page, Caroline, Casey Busch, Casey Schmidt, Cassandra Crane, Cassidy, Catherine Adams, Catherine Muriel, Catherine Poppenwimer, Cathy Billings, Cecily Caceu, Celeste LeCompte, Charles Levkoe, Charlie R Beard, Charlie White, Chelsea Hanchett, Choon Boon, Chris Bruce, Chris M, Chris Mueller, Chris Register, Chris Stolte, Chris Van de Vne, Chris Webster, Chrislyn Kail, Christina Alm, Christine Manganaro, Christy Sander, Chuck Levitan, Cindy Villarreal, Cindy Wall, Circle TY Ranch, CityFabric, C-K Chen, Claire, Claire Boudreaux, Claire Napawan, Claire O'Brien, Clara Bosak-Schroeder, Clint Padgett, Cokie Anderson, Colin McFadden, Connor Link, Cory, Courtney Glettner, Courtney Pfad, Craig, Crystalyn, Curtis Galloway, Cynthia, Cynthia Price, Cynthia Yang, Cyrus Farivar, D Jones, Da Hias, Dan Jubelirer, Dan Kane, Dana, Dana Bauer, Dana Freeman, Daniel Kronovet, Danielle, Danielle Lyons, Dario Bressanini, Darya Oreshkina, Dave M, Dave Reeck, David Joiner, David Leahey, David Pistrang, David van Berckel, David Zetland, Davide Papotti, David Paulch, Dawn Masiero, Debby Baker, Deborah Bain, Debra Lande, Debra Sharkey, Deirdre Blagg, Denia, Denis Wood, Dereka Rushbrook, Devon Parish, Diana Sinton, Diane Kass, Dickson Tam, Don Richard, Dorn Moore, Douglas J Trainor, Douglas Roepke, Ed Rosen, Edible East Bay, Edrmiller, Elaine C Smith, Elana Gershuny, Eleni Oneill, Eli Zigas, Elisa Elkind, Elisabetta Recine, Elissa, Elizabeth Berman, Elizabeth Fraser, Elizabeth McAllister,

Ellen Burke, Ellen Kersten, Ellen Popejoy, Eloisa Vacchini, Emily, Emily Busch, Emily Rosenberg, Emma Logan, Emma Tome, Eric Chen, Eric Cooper, Eric Lovell, Eric Slatkin, Erica Ashcroft, Erica Schmitz, Erin, Erin, Erin Heffron, Errol Packard, Esther Rhodes, Eswar, E Thomas, Eugenia Tumanova, Eva Markiewicz, Eve Minson, Fabian Berger, Filip Stabrowski, Frank Robert, Franklin Dingemans, Fred Stoss, Garrett Bradford, Garrett Broad, Gary Adamkiewicz, Gary Gray, Gary Wendt-Bogear, George Christie, George Edwards, Gina, Gina G, Giuli Petra, Graeme, Green Retirement Inc, Greer Hauptman, Greg Kandankulam, Greg Sensing, Guntram Herb, Gustavo Oliveira, Guy Avagliano, Hai T, Han Kim, Hannah Smith, Harry McIlroy, Heather Sinclair, Heather Sparks, Heather Wooten, Heesoo Kim, Heidi Wasch, Helen Walters, Hilary Near, Holly Heintz Budd, Hubert Humes, Hugh Blackmer, Hugh Monahan, I am a robot from the future, Ian Dodson, Ilan Kow, Infoeco, Inna Volynskaya, Isaac Markus, | Garrett Armstrong, Jack Everitt, Jackie Cornejo, Jackie Malcolm, Jaimi DeFeo, James Barba, James Green, James Higgins, James Yeh, Jan Brooks, Jane Diamond, Jane Renahan, Jane Slade, Jane White, Jasmine Fallstich, Jaynie Loeb, Jean Mudge, Jean-Francois Roy, Jeanne Calabrese, Jeanne Friedman, Jeff Filipiak, Jeff Ingebritsen, Jeff Wielki, Jeffrey Bice, Jeffrey Reed, Jellita Prints, Jen Datka, Jen Klopp, Jennifer Blakeslee, Jennifer Elks, Jennifer Gardner, Jennifer Iversen, Jennifer Kammerer-Pulley, Jennifer Marriott Kramer, Jennifer Mitchell, Jennifer Murphy, Jennifer Sta. Ines, Jennifer Wagner, Jennifer Williams, Jeralyn Beach, Jeremy Ehrhardt, Jerry Rappaport, Jess Daniel, Jesse Ezekiel Tolz, Jesse Hsu, Jessica Graham, Jessica Prentice, Jill, Jim Campe, Jim Schneider, Jim Tober, Jith Eswarappa, JL Diaz, Jobe Roberts, Joe Pomerville, Joerg Rings, John, John, John Chiang, John Estrada, John Flournoy, John Hagihara, John Lehnert, John McKenna, John Newfry, Jon Stern aka Wee Heavy, JonaRose Feinberg, Jonars, Jonathan, Jonathan, Jonathan Bohan, Jonathan Palace, Jondou Chen, Jorge Tan, Joseph Dejardin, Josephine Penaga, Josh Hattersley, Joshua Manning, Justin Nolan, Jotong, Jubal Harpster, Judy MacIsaac Robertson, Judy Myers, Julia Siemer, Julie Cidell, K Pan, Kaci Guilford, Kacy, Karen D'Angelo, Karen Edelstein, Karen Shimizu, Kari McKay, Karim Moussally, Karin Beekman, Karin Savio, Karyl Nakamura, Kat Shizuyo, Kate, Kate, Kate, Kate Dixon, Kate McCarthy, Kate Regan, Katharine Bradley, Katherine Collins, Kathleen M Rose, Kathryn Clark, Katie Nelson, Katy Massingill Manck, Kelly McVey, Kelly Saturno, Kelsey Ripp, Kenny Scott, Kevin Smith, Khadija Anderson, Kim Burns, Kim Isaak, Kim McAtee, Kirk Anderson, kle\_pe, Krisna Suryanata, Kristen Schwarz, Kristin Bott, Kristin Pool, Kristy Holland, Kunal Kumar, Kurt Cuffey, Kurt Wong, Kurt L, Kweku Ngissah, Kyle Merslich, Kyle Pollock, Kyle Warren & Aretha Black, Kyle Young, Lalit Roy, Lana, Lara Couldwell, Larry T Spencer, LaTeisha Moore, Laura Fernandez, Laura Reading, Laurel, Laurel Maloney, Lauren, Lauren Minecka, Lauren Rizzo, Leah White, Lee Venolia, Leonardo, Lesley, Lewis Ames, Libbie Coleman, Libby Abbott, Lila LaHood, Lilly Hayden, Linda Gardiner,

Linda Norris & Sarah Crow, Lindsey Kugel, Lindsey Sanders, lindsev Stuart, Lisa Bralts, Lisa Chen, Lisa Fortlouis Wood, Lisa Nelson, Lisa S, Lisa Schubert, Logan Harris, Louis Eby, Louise Deis, Lucia Arg, Luke Bergmann, Luke van Ryn, Luna, Lydia, Lynn Holzman, Lynn Waterhouse, M Ross, Maayan Weinberg, Maggie Caldwell, Mara Jaffe, Marco Ferrari, Marek Jakubowski, Margueritte, Mari Pierce-Ouinonez, Marianne Doczi, Mariapaola, Marina Chotzinoff, Marina Islas, Marion Nestle, Marjorie Ensor, Mark Baum, Mark Fithian, Mark Gardner, Mark Green, Mark Horowitz, Mark Musick, Marla, Marnie Maskell, Marnie Riddle, Martha Haymaker, Marty Krasney, Mary & George, Mary Beth Pudup, MC Abbott, Mary Helen Doherty, Mary Sigler, Maryn McKenna, Masha Gelfand, Mathias Krueckeberg, Matt Stortz, Matthew Re, Maureen Bradford, Maxwell Cutty, MB Carvalho, Meagan Schipanski, Meaghan, Meaghan Overton, Meg Tallon, Megan M, Megin Jimenez, Melanie Reding, Melissa Fuster, Melissa Murphy, Melissa Ropke, Mia DeNardi, Michael Haley, Michael Lugo, Michael Pennell, Michael Porath, Michael Zelinski, Michaela Oldfield, Michele Flournoy, Michele Forman, Michelle, Michelle Corrigan, Michelle Reyes, Mike, Mike Boruta, Mike Kao, Milan Budha Magar, Minna, Mira Dessy, Miranda Nero, Miriam Moses, Mitchell Kail, MM Pack, Monika Dutt, Monika Roy, Moreno, Nakael Narayan, Nancy Jacobson, Nat Vonnegut, Natala Menezes, Natalie Jacobson, Natalie Locke, Natalie Mello, Natalya, Nathan Burtch, Nathan Evans, Nathan Garcia, Nathaniel Kelso, Neal Parish, Carla Koren & Ross, Nica Powell, Nicholas Franklin, Nick Bayless, Nicola Twilley, Nicole Wires, Niki C Fowler, Nina Misuraca Ignaczak, Nina Tarr, Noel Hohnstine, Noelle, Noreen Towers, Nour Dados, Ofri Oren, Oscar Balderrama, Paige Eley, Paige Graff, Pam Paulson, Pat Dodge, Patricia De Krafft Lewis, Patrícia Ferraz, Patricia Garcia, Patrick, Patrick Brown, Patrina Huff, Patzig, Paul Edison-Lahm, Paul Fine, Peggeth Loeb, Pete Blanchard, Peter Jaffe, Peter Kavanagh, Peter Wimberger, Phiala, Philip Faulconer, Philipp, Pierre, Pravitra Chaikulngamdee, Priscilla, Priscilla Martel, Queenbubblypiss, Rachcreative, Rachel, Raines Cohen, Rebecca Proehl, Rebecca Snedeker, Rebecca Solnit, Rebecca Wynne, Regina Grabrovac, Remy, Remy Jaffe, Renato Bruni, Rhianon Price, Ri Sulli, Richard, Richard Allaway, Richard Nisa, Richard Wright, Rob Cozzi, Robert Ayasse, Robert M Donatiello, Robin D Perera, Robin Datel, Robyn Metcalfe, Rocco Cretacci, Rohit R Goswami, Ron, Rosalind & Elliot Weinberg, Ryan Julian, Ryan Sievert, S Clements, S Keith, S Wigton, Sabine Petrasek, Sabreen Baz, Sallie Marston, SalonAddict, Samuel Wharton, San Shoppell, Sandor Katz, Sandwich, Sanja Curgus, Sapna, Sara, Sara Holman, Sarah, Sarah Alexander, Sarah Chamberlain, Sarah Kavage, Sarah Lewis, Sarah Liberman, Sarah McKinney, Sarah Skenazy, Sarah Strand, Sarah Wolbert, Scott Roberts, Scott Sanders, Sean Whittaker, Seira Ikeuchi, Serena Scott, Shannon, Sharon AvRutick, Shawn Blaesing Thompson, Shawn Messick, Shayne, Shehreen, Shendl Tuchman, Sheryl Aseltine Busch, Shiloh Krupar, Shipping + Receiving,

Shivani Ganguly, Simona, Sofi Hersher, Sondra Bernstein, Stan Hieronymus, Stephan Hoche, Stephanie Ciancio, Stephanie Kesler, Stephen Kellogg, Steve Zeck, Steven Dugger, Steven Silvern, Sue, Summer Porter, Susan Chun, Susan Hopp, Susan Mesner, Susan Miller, Suzanne Linder, Suzanne Martindale, Svend Andersen, Sylvie Amezcua, Tali Weinberg, Tamara, Tamara Manik-Perlman, Tammy Borichevsky, Tarek Milleron, Ted Weinstein, Temra, Teressa Trollope, Terra graziani, Tessa, ThienVinh Nguyen, Thom Somes, Thomas Raimann, Thomas Sherman, Tiffany Branum, Tim Kline, Tim McCollow, Tim McLaughlin, TJMan, Tobias Töpfer, Tod Booth, Todd Gage, Todd Sweet, Toddex, Tom Daniels, Tom Gadd, Tom Grubbs, Tom Heman, Tony Durso, Trevor Brown, Trevor Morris, Tyler Lambuth, Ugo Neville Smith, Uli Kindermann, Vaalea D, Vanessa Diffenbaugh, Wednesday Sevilla, Wendy Brawer, Whitney, Will Payne, William Brown, Willy, Willy Blackmore, Worldmapper, Wren Withers, Wyndham Boulter, Yoonie Kim, Yoshi Murai, Yvonne Schumacher Strejcek, Zachary Nowak, Zan, Zoe Dowling

171

# benefactor

The collaborators of *Food: An Atlas* chose Greenhorns (www.thegreenhorns.net) to be the recipient of a monetary gift from the sale of the book.

# GREENHORNS

A greenhorn is a new farmer.

Greenhorns is entering its sixth year as a non-traditional, grassroots organization for young farmers. Their mission is to promote, recruit, and support new entrants into American agriculture.

Agriculture's decline is apparent in every rural town in this country: farmers are retiring, farms are closing and consolidating, and the farming practice that predominates is a monoculture of commodity crops. Meanwhile, local healthy food has become difficult for people to find and afford. This is the injustice our movement seeks to repair.

We need many new farmers in this country to steward the land, to build a new food system that is regionally focused, just, and sustainable. These farmers will work to build a new food economy and a new farming economy by starting and running family-scale farms that produce vegetables, fruits, meats, and grains within sustainable systems.

The social, informational, and network support Greenhorns provides through their events, blog, books, radio show, and documentary film, are designed to help farmers coping with the business and personal challenges of starting out. Their toolsite Farmhack.net is a place for technology sharing and open-source designs for labor-saving devices. Their map at ServeYourCountry-Food.net is a place to find other farmers in the network. And a new series of films at Ourland.tv address some of the critical dysfunctions of our current food systems and point to people who are solving them: one farm and enterprise at a time.

Find out more and join the Greenhorns!

# dedication

For the guerrillas who first said yes to the brazen idea of making an atlas in half a year—those who love food and geography, and their intersection on the map.

For all the people who gave freely of their creative energy and precious time to build this volume. We did it to work and learn together, for fun and community. We did it for food and just to see it be done.

And for all the rest of the guerrilla collaborators around the globe who have let mapmaking become an act of collaboration, throwing their knowledge and their art into the cache, understanding that reciprocal learning happens by collective reason.

# production

Darin Jensen and Molly Roy, editors Kaitlin Jaffe, production manager Querido Galdo, art director D Russell Wagner, layout and editorial Emily Busch, crowd-funding manager M C Abbott, crowd-funding manager Elliot Waring, kickstarter videographer Temra Costa, chapter introductions and editorial

With special editorial assistance from: Cynthia King and Joshua Jelly-Schapiro

Food: An Atlas (ISBN 978-0-9884272-0-4) Darin Jensen & Molly Roy, editors

Copyright © 2013 Guerrilla Cartography

All rights reserved. Neither this book nor any portion thereof may be reproduced without written permission of the publisher.

Printed in California by 1984 Printing on recycled paper.

Guerrilla Cartography PO Box 18744 Oakland CA 94619

guerrillacartography.net

172



is a crowd-sourced and crowd-funded collaborative project of guerrilla cartography and publishing. The atlas endeavors to map food in its myriad contexts and conditions at many scales of research and geography.

Scores of cartographers and food researchers fuse traditional cartography, poster art, infographics, and journalistic text-blocking to render the map as a narrative device. In all more than 120 collaborators came together in the spirit of knowledge-caching to create *FOOD: an atlas.* 





